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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the trIembers of DLF Propery Developers Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of DLF Ptopemy Developers Limited
("the ComPanY"),which comprise the Balance sheet as at Nfarch37,2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a sumlnary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements glve the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act") in the
manner so required and glve a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affats of the Company as at N'Iarch 31, 2025, its Profit including other
comprehensive income its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis fot Opinion

S7e conducted our audit of the Ind AS fmancial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our
rePort. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Ind AS financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditot's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Ind AS
financial statemeflts and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does flot cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection rvith our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent rvith the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or othenvise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the rvork we have perfonned, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard
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Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the maners stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive irr.oJ.., cash flows and changes rn equity of
the Company ln accordance with the accou.tirg principles generally accepted in Inclia, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section tiz or the Act read with [the Comp^ii., (ndian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 201,5, as amended]. This responsibiliry also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selectiln and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making iudgments and estimrtes thut are reasonable and p*a..rt; and the
desipyr, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operatirrg
effectively for ensuring the accvre,cy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the pr.iurrtioi
and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that glve a true anJ fair view and. arefree from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company,s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going.o.r..rl and usirrg ih. goirrg
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole
ate free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor,s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is , hrgh level of assurance, but is flot a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. lVisstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material il individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the U^iir of these Ind AS
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

' Identify and assess the risks of materialmisstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecung
a matenal misstatement resulting from fiaud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud ma|
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

' Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(, of the Act, we ,r. ,lro responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls ,y.i.- in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

' Evaluate the 
^pptoprtateness 

of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

' Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 

^ 
tn terial uncertainty exists related to events or

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continu e 
^s 

agoing concern. If
we conclude that a mateflal uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor,s report
to the related disclosures in the financialstatements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modi$.our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of o* auditor,s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going.orr..,,,.
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' Evaluate the overall presentation, structute and content of the Ind AS financial statements, includingthe disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the undedying transactions andevents in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

!7e communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scopeand timlng of the audit and significant audit firrdirrgr, including arry srgnirrcant deficiencies in internal controlthat we identiS, during our audit.

we also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethicalrequirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationrt ip, and other matters thatmay reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, relaied safeguards.

Repot on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1" As required by the Companies 
-(Auditor's 

Report) Order, 2O2o ('the Order,), issued by the Cen*alGovernment of India in terms ofsub-section (ft) of section 143 ofihe Act, we g* * the ..Annexure A,,
a statement on the matters specifred in paragraphs 3 and,4 of the order.

2. As required by Sectio n M3e) of the Act, we report that:

(') 'Vre 
have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessalT for the pu{poses of our audit;

@) In our opiniol, proPer books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

G) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of -hurrg., in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement urith the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accou.tirg Standards
specified under Section 733 of the Act, read with Companie. g"aiu" Accounting Standlrds) Rules,
201,5, as amended;

G) On the basis of the written rePresentations received from the directors as on Nlarch 31,,Z121taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on N{arch 3l,2125from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 1,64 e) "f the Act;

(0 With respect_to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B,, to this report;

G) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
comPany has not paid or provided 

^ny 
maragerial remuneration as defined by the provisions of the

Section 1,97 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(h) With resPect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules ,2074, as amended i1 o.r, opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations glven to us:

i' The Company has disclosed impact of pending litigations in its financial position in Ind AS
Financial Statements - Refer Note 38 to the financial statements

ii' The ComPany did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There v/ere no amounts which.were
Protection Fund by the Company.

required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

l.
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lv
a) The N'Ianagement has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share p;;; or a.,y other sources or kind of
funds) by the Cornpany to or in any other p"iro., or entity, including foreign enuty
("Intermediaries'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing of otn"r.irise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly Lr indirectly lend or invest iI oth.r persons or
entities identi{ied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company i.Ulri-ut.Beneficiaries') or provide 

^fly 
goalz.ntee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries;

b) The N{anagement has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have-been received by the
Company from any Person or entity, including foreign ."tiry ('Funding parties,), *ith th.
understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise, th;t in. Co-parry shali, whether,
direcdy or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identifred in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of thq Funding P^ry ('Ultimate Beneficiaries') or prfvide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

.) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to b.li*. that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

The company has not paid or declare d ary dividend during rhe year, accordingly the provision
of section 1'23 of the Act are not applicable to the company.

The Company has used a thfud pary operated accounting softuzare for maintaining its books
of account, based on examination of service organizatton controls report (SOC r-"port), rve
noted that the audit trail feature of the said software was enabled and operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softrvare. Further, aLAg the couise of
our audit, based on the examination of such report, we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, based on examination of SOC report,
the audit trail in respect of such software has been recorded and preserved in full complia'ce
with the requirements of section 128(5) of the Companies Act, ZOlZ,in respect of the financial
year ended N{arch 37, 2025. Further, in respect of the financial years ended N.Iarch 31., 2024,
in the absence of SOC report for the period from April 1,202i to December 31, 2OiD3,we
are unable to assess whether the audit trail has been presenred as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co

tants
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"Annexute A" to the Auditot's Repott of even date to the members of DLF ptoperty Developers
Limited , on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended on March 3lr Z02S.

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the true and fair viewof the Ind AS financial statements of the company aod corrsidering the information and explanations givento us and books of accounts and other records provided to us during the normal course of audit, we hereby
report that:-
,)

(^) (A) The Company has maintarned proper records showrng fuIl particulars, rncluding quantitative
details and siruation of properr/, plant and Equipment.

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

@) Property, Plant and Equipment- were physically verified by the management during the year.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no material di"screpancies were noticed
on such verification.

G) Since there is no immovab-le ProPerty in the company, hence reporting under clause 3 (, G) of the
order is not apptcable to the company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, Company has not revalued any of its
Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible asiets during the year.

G) There are no proceedingsinitiated or pending against the properry for holdin g^nybenami property
under the ptohibition of Benami Property Transactions Cct, iqgs and rules iade thereunder.

1i)

(^) In our opinion and according to the information & explanation glven to us, the inventory has been
physical verified by the management at reasonable interval duiing the year. In out opinion, the
procedures of physical verification of Inventories followed by *lrorg.-ent are reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the Company and nature of its business. No discrepancies of l0%
or more in aggregate for each class of inventory has been noticed.

(b) According to the information & explanation given to us, the Company has not been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of t 5 crore, in aggrega te, at any points of time during the year, from
banks or frnancial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under
clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

ru) According to the information & explanation glven to us, the Company has not made invesffnents,
provided any- security or guarantee or granted any loans or advanc.i i1 th. nature of loans, secured
or unsecured to companies, fi.rms and limited liability partnerships or other parties covered.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (1u) (a) to (g "f the order are not applicable to the
Company.

19 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations gl\,en to us, the company has not
granted any loans nor made any investments as defined in the section 185 and section 1g6 of the
Companies Act, 201'3. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(rv) of the order is not applicable to the
comPany.

9 According to the information & explanation qr.r, to us, Company has not accepted any deposit or
amounts rvhich are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting u"der clause :(v) of the Order is not
applicable.
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v, x'{aintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 201,1forthe business activities caried out by the Company.
Hence, reporting under clause (*) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In respect of statutory dues,
a) According to the records of the company, the company is generally regular in depositing undisputed

statutory dues including goods and service tax, provident firnd, 
"mploly..r' state^insurance, income-

tax, sales-tax, serv-ic.- !u*, duty of customs, duty of excise, .rral re ,dd"d tax, cess and. any other
statutory dues applicable to it.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of income tax, goods and service tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales ta*, customs drry, excise
duty, value added tax and cess u/ere outstanding, as at N{arch 31,, 2025 for a period of more than sir
months from the date they became payable.

b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on
N{arch 31,,2025 ofl account of disputes are glven below:

(In Lakhs

According to the information & explanation given to us, there were no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the yea-r in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, the requirement 1[ ..por, on
clause 3(viii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

^) According to the information & explanation glven to us, the Company has not taken any loans or
other borrowings from any Bank or Financial institution or any government authority. Hence
reporting under clause 3(i"Xu) of the order is not applicable

b) According to the infonnation & explanation given to us, the Company has not been declared wiltful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any government authority.

.) According to the rnformation & explanation glven to us, the Company has not taken any term loan
during the year and there are no outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and hence,
reporting under clause 3(o)G) of the order is not appricable.

d) According to the information & explanation grven to us, the company has not raised funds during
the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3 (4(d) of the order is noiapplicable.

e) The company does not have any associate, joint venture or subsidiary company. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(i")G) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

'

0 The company does not have lrilr associate, joint ventLue or subsidiary company. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(oxg of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

^
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According to the information & exp-lanation g1\,en to u-s,-th: company has not raised mofley by wayof initial public offer or further public ?ftI (icluding debt insrum.;r.Accordingly, the provisionof clause 3(")(r) of the order is not applicable

b) Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of share or convertible
debentures. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3e1b) or,n" oid", is not applicable.

a)

(u) To the best of our knowledge and According to the information & explanation given to us, no fraud
by the Company or 

^ny 
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no rePort under sub-sectio n (12) of section 1,43 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by cost auditors/secretadal auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 ,. pr.r.ribed under Rule 13of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 with the Central Government.

G) According to the information & explanation glveo to us, no whistle blower complaints has been
received during the year by company.

In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us, the company is not a
Nidhi comPany. Hence the provision of clause 3(xii) (a) to (c) oithe order is not ,ppli.rbl. to the
comPany.

According to the information & explanations glven to us, all transactions defined under Section 1gB
of the Act are in compliance with Section 1BB and details of these transactions are propely disclosed
in the Financial Statements. Further, Section 177 of the Act is not applicable ,o in.tompany and
accordingly the requirement to rePort under Clause 3(xiii) of the o.d.r insofar it relates to Section
1,77 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

The ComPany does not have an internal audit systems and is not required to have an internal audit
system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, ZOtl.Therefore, the requirement
to report under clauses 3("r)(r) and 3(xiv)@) 

"f the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or
pefsons connected with its directors as referred under provisions of section 1,92 of the Companies
4ct,201.3.

a) In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us, the company is not
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserves Bank of India .,tct, tOl+.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(*0 @) ofthe order is not applicable to the company.

b) The Com\uny_is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financials or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvr)@) is not applicablJto the Company.

t) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement toreport in clause 3("116) is not applicable to the
Company.

d) The Group has only one Core Investment Company as part of the Group. Hence the
requirement to rePort on clause 3(xvr)(d) of the ordei is not applicable to the .o*purry

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year and not in the immediately
preceding financial year.

xr)

xli)

"*)

xtv)

xv)

xvt)
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t"lii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Accordingly,the requirement to report in clause 3(xvin) is not applicable to the Com puoyl

xt-x) on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of rcahzairon of financial assets andpayment of financial liabilities, other informatiori r..o-panying the financial statements and ourknowledge of the Board of Directors and N'Ianagement plans and based on our examination of theevidence supporting the assumptions, nothing h; .orn.io our attention, which causes us to believethat any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is notcapable of meetingits liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and *hI., they fall due within
a period of one year from the balanc. th..t date. \We, however, state that this is not an assurance asto the future viability of the Company. we further state that our reporting is based on the facts upto the date of.the audit repotr and we neithet give any guarantee nor any assurance that allliabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by theCompany as and when they fall due.

xx) According to the information & explanations glven to us, compafly is not required to make anyexpenditure under corporate social responsibility under provision of s..tioi 135 of the Act.
Accordrngly, the provision of clause 36") (r) & @) "f the order is not applicable to the company.

rxi) This clause of the order is applicable to consolidated financial statements. The audit report under
reference is on the standalone financial statements of the company. Consequently, clause (xxi) of
paragraph of the order is not applicable to the company.

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Kunal a

Partner

Ilemb No. 521269
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t.Annexure - BD to the Auditors, Repot

Repot on the Internal Financial Controls undet Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of theCompanies Act, 2013 (..the Actrr)

In conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the company as of and for the year endedN'Iarch 31', 2025, we have audited the intern al financial controls over financial reporting of DLF ptopemy
Developers Limited

Managementts Responsibitity for Internal Financial controls

The Respective Board of Dtectors of the compa ny arcresponsible for establishing and maintaining internal
{tnancial controls based on the internal controiover financial reporting criteria..t"rbli.h.d by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the' Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India('ICAI)' These responsibfities include- the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the ordedy and effi.cient conduct of its business,
rncluding adherence to company's policies, the safeguardi"g of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness oithe acJo.r.rtirrg records, ,rd th. timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies e.t]ZOtS.

Auditors' Re sponsibility

our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. 'W'e 

conducted our audit in a.coidunce with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the ,.Guidance Note,) issued by ICAI and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemid to be prescribed under ,..tio.r 1,43(10)of tfr. Companies
Act,2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internJ finaacial controls, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequ acy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operatirg effectiven.rr. 6* audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an under"standing of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a mateial weakness exists, ald testirrg and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. ThJprocedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or effor.

!7e believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system orr., ft-rrrcial reporting.

Meaning of Intemal Financial Controls Ovet Financial Repotting

A company's internal finanaal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparatio" of fnanliil statements for
external pu{Poses in accordance with generally accepted aicounting i"".lpt r. A company's internal financial
control over financial rePorting includes those poliiies and proced"i.r that (1) p..,rin ,o ,h. maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and,fatrly refleit the transactiorrs and dispositions of the assetsof the comPany; (2) provide reasonable assurarr.. ihrt transactions are recorded oi .r...rrrry to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, ad that
receipts and expenditures of the comPany are being mude only ir accordance with authoriz,aaons of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regard"ing prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or dirporition of the comprrry', u.Lts that could have a
material effect on the Ind AS financial statements. -,- 

. 
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Inhetent Limitations of Intetnal Financial Controls ovet Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including thepossibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error orfraud may occur and not be deiected. .,{[o, proiections of any evaluation of the internal financial controlsover financial reporting to future periods aie subject to the risk that the intern al financial control overfinancial teporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliancewith the policies or procedures mav deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opiniofl, the Company has, T lll material respects, an adequate internal financial controls systern overfinancial reporting and such internal financial cont;ls over.fioarrcial reporting were operating effectively asat r\'[arch 31',2025, based on the internal control o'er fina.cial reportinj criteria established by the Companvconsidering the essential componeflts of internal control stated in the b.ridrrr." Note on Audit of Internal
Financial controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

&
,+
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DLF Property Developers Limited
u70100H R2006PLC106417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Bloclq DLF City, Phase III, Gurugrarnr122002.
Balance Sheet as a,t3lMarch2O25

ASSETS

Non-current assets

a) Pr>pert1., plant and equipment
b) ( )ther intangible asset

c) (--apital work-in-propgess

d) Iiinancial assets

(i) Other financials assets

e) Deferred tax assets (net)

f) Non-current tax assets (ner)

g) Other non current assets

Current assets

a) Inventories

b) liinancial assets

(i) Trade receivables

(ii) Cash and cash ecluivalents

(iii) Other bank balance

(iv) Other financials assers

c) Other current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

a) Ilquin' share capital

b) ( )ther equit]'

Non-current liabilities
a) Long-rcrm provisions

Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities

i) Borrowinpp

ii) T'rade pavables
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises

-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

iii) ()ther financial liabilities

b) Other current liabilities

c) Short-term provisions

Total equity and liabilities

Summan of material accountinq policies

4

+.\
+t]

235.52

197.28

417.50

131.81

in Lakhs)

169.37

20.30

186.74

34.13

0.83

5

6

7

8

985.14 411.37

9 13,013.66

1,176.96

1,379.00

6,282.26

682.21

522.02

8,110.53

9.73

2,013.63

1.299.36

570.94

186.48

10

1i

1,2

5

8

23,056.11 72,790.67

24,041.25 13,202.04

13

14

15

5.00

3,469.42

5.00

617 .7 4

3,474.42 622.74

30.31 40.50

30.31 40.50

16

17

18

t9

l5

8,101.00

52.73

4,826.07

91.30

7,457.58

7.81

1,087.00

350.67

4,708.76

144.82

6,246.39

1.11

20,536.52 12,538.80

24,041.25 1l.,202.04

1-3

'['he accompanling notes form an integral part of these financial statements

Based t>n our rep()rt of c.ven date attached.

For and on behalfof
ARG&Co.LLP
Chartered .\ccountants

(lC.\l liirm (). 0630N/N500036)

ljor and on bchalf o[ the board of directors of
DLF Property Developers Limited

,,Idrit
Viclcy Arora
Dircctor
DIN : 08698913

Rahul Dev Sharma
[)ircctor
l)lN : 09211391

Kunal
Partrrcr

\lcmbership

CHAATfNE

o.: 521269

Place: ()urtrygam

Date : 01.05.2025

* *

Notes As at
31st March 2025



DLF Property Developers Limited
u70 100 H R2 006P LCt06 417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF City, Phase III, Gurugram r122002.
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st Marc]nz0zl

(Amount in Lakhs)

I. INCOME
Revenue from operations
( )ther income

Total Income

II. EXPENSES
Cost of llaterial Consumed

Emplovee benefirs expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
()ther expenses

Total Expenses

III. Profit/(Loss) before tax
IV. Tax Expenses

Current tax

Deferred rax

V. Profit/(Loss)after tax

VI. Other comprehensive income
-\ i)Items that will nor be reclassified to profit and loss:

- \er (loss) /Gain on remeasuremenr of actuarial assumptions
VII. Total comprehensive income for the year

Earning per equity share
Basic (Rs.)

Diluted (Rs.)

Ratio -\nalvsis

Summan-of material

20

2t

27

+l

13,054.32

479.63

1,804.70

98.39

22

23

24

25

26

13,533.95

9,1,29.91

770.60

112.72

40.88

,052.02

11,106.13

2,427.92

(+ 1r.50)

1,903.09

530.09

457.88

166.30

25.21

741,.30

1,920.79

(17.70)

2,945.32 (17.70\

6.36 3.76
2,951.69 (13.e4)

28 l.13

1.13

(0.01)

(0.01)

accounung policies 1-3

The accompanving notes form an integral part of rhese financial statements

Based on our report of even date attached

For and on behaliof
ARG&Co.LLP
Chartered -\ccountanrs
(rC.\I F \o

a

\lem \o.: 521269

Place: Gurugram

Date : t)1.05.2025

For and on behalf oi the board o[ direcrors of
DLF Property Developers Limited

{\ M V
Viclry Arora
Director
DI\ :08698913

Dev
Director
DIN :092-17392

r
1_

Notes
No.

For the year ended
Sl]}.datch ?.025

For the year ended
3lM.atch 2024

Particulars

-=_j



DLF Propefi Developers Limited
u70100HR2006PLC106417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tow'er, R Block, DLF ciw, phase III, Gurugram, 122002.
Cash Flow Statement for the vear ended 3lMrarct,2025

ln

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profi t/ (Loss) before rax
Adiustment for :

Interest e\pensc
Unclaimed balancc- n'ritten back
Depreciation

Allorvance / rvnte offls of financial and non-financial assets and pror.isions
Interest Income
(-ustomer Balances

Operating profit before working capital changes
Adiustment for change in working capital:
(lncrease) /dccrease in inlentorics
(lncrease)/decrease in trade receir-ables

(lncrease)/decrease in loans and adr-ances and other financi.al assers

Increase/ (decrease) in other current and non-current financial liabihrres

Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables and other payables

(Increase)/decrease in other current and non-current assets

lncrease/(decrease) in current and non-current pror-isions
Decrease in other current and non-current habihtres

Cash flow from operations
Incomc tas pard (net of pror-isions)

Net cash flow from operating activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Capital rvork-in-progtess

Purchase of propern, planr and equipment (inclut-Lng capital rv<-rrk in progress)
Investment in fised deposits (net)

Interest receired

Net cash used in investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Interest p.rud (includrng TDS)
Proceeds tiom current borros,ings
Repavment ot- loans to rclatcd parties

Net cash flow from financing activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

(.ash and cash equivalents at rhe begnning of the vear

Cash and cash cquivalenrs ar the end ofthe vear '

2,427.82

112.72

,+l).88

62.11

(2ee.e7)

(t7.70)

166.30

(4.1e)

25.21

(ft8.08)

2,343.56 81.54

(4,e03.13)

(1.161.23)

(r l1.28)

(61..36)

(180.e2)

265.29

(3 s2)

1,211.20

(2,373.01)

4.14

(678.s0

5,584.84

929.1 8

(2,607.39) 3,548.13

(llx).71)

(2,708.10) 3,525.69

(107.03)

(4,976.33)

29(\.79

(20.30)

(112.1s)

(ee8.8e)

50.56

(4,786.57)

(1s3.e6)

7,429.00

(41s.00)

(1,080.78)

(172.22)

(317.00)

6,860.04 (48e.22)

(634.63) L,955.69

2,( )1 3.6l
1,379.( )( )

51.94

2,013.6-3

()thsr disclosurcs requircd bl Ind-.\S 7:

(A) Changes in Liabilities arising from actrvrtres

(634.63) 1,955"69 I

1,225.58

7,o 1+.00

it2.i 1

r 138.57)

8,183.32

lst April2024
(-ash Flou's
'I'ransaction cclst adjustment
Interest e\penses (excluding interest accrued but not duc)
Interest Paid
Balance as on 31Match2025

1st April2023
( lrrsh lilou's
T'ransirction cost irdj ustment
lnrercst c\penscs (escludrng interest accrued but not due)

Intcrest Paid
Balance as on 31M'arch2024

1,5-18.50

(317.0())

1.38.57

(1-+-+.4e)

\ns.s8

*
CHAftTEREO
ACCOU$JIANTS#

1,

0r

veaf ]€ar
3ll&,f;arch2O?5 3lMlarch2024

(22 44)

Non - Current
Borrou,ing

Non - Current
Borrowing



DLF Properw- Developers Limited
u70100HR2006PLC106417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF Citl--, phase III, Gurugr am, 122002.
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 3lMarchZ02S

(B) Changes in Liabilities arising from fnvesring activities
()ther than thrrsc discl,scd rn (-ash t'lorl-statement, thcrc is n, nrn-cash mt.,r-cmcnt in inr.esting actir.ities

'fhc acc'mp:rnving n(rtes rrre an integral part ()t thcsc financial statcmcnts

Based on our audit rep()rt of e\.en date irttached.

For and on behalf of
ARG&Co.LLP
(.hartered

Kunal
Partner

Phce:

Date : ()1.()5.2025

o.:521269 ffrt$ L-

lior and or-r bchrrlI o[ tht. board oi tlircctors of
DLF Properry- Developers Limited

i? d-r
Q[ (_" .,t

-o

{iov(
V

* Vic\ Arora
l)irectr-rr

I)lN :()fl69fl9l3

Dev Sharma
f)lrector
DIN :09247397

fr
1
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DLF Property Developers Limited
u70 100 H R2 006PLC106 417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF city, phase II[, Gurugr amr l2200z.
Statement of change in equity as at 31 March 2025

A share
(Amount in Lakhs)

BC Convertible Debentures in lakhs

in lakhs

C Other equity

Netue end purpose ofrcsewe

(i) Other comprehensive incomc (OCI) reseffe

The company ha-s elected ro recognise changes in fair ralue of cenain in\ csrments in equit\- securities in the comprehensive income. These changes are
accumulated within the F|O(ll cqui$ inrcstments resenc rvithin equiq. The company will transfet emount from this resen-e to rerainerl eamings [hen
the relelenr er.luitl securities rvill be detecogniscd.

6; Equity Componeat ofCompoutrd Fin.ncial Instrument

a. The Companl- hadissued& allotted 18,00,00,000, 0.010 o {inpulsotih' ConYeniblc Debentutes ofRs. 10/ each (tCD aggregaring ro Rs.180,m,00,000/-
to DLF rlomc Developers l-imrtcd (DllDI-), the holding companr on 30.06.2020 agaiost rhe ouhrnflding unsecured-toan granred br DIIDL. CCD
Itolders shdl bc entitled to conrett rhe C(lD in rme or more tranchcs rvithifl i period of ren vears fmm rhe rlate of rhe alftrtmenr br issuiag a 1rincn
notice to the Companl' gccifiiog the numbcr of {i(ll)s ptop.)sed t() be convened. 1he (}mpanr shall accordingtr, issue antl allt t ttre eguat number of
Eguio Shares ofRs. l0l- c&h ro rhe (l(lt) holdcrs.

'Ihc Orll) shall be crmpulsorih conreniblc int,r liquin sharcs (,n thc datc oferpin ofrcn lean frrm the datt ofatkrrment.

granrcd b! l)CDl-. (l(lD Seritsl/2020 holders shall be tnritlcd to crnr ttt rhe (:(lD Scries-t /2020 in one or more tranchcs \.irhin rperilxt of ren rears

rimpanr shall accordinglr, issue and alkrt thc qual numbcr of Iiquin Shans of Rs. l0l- cach r(r rhe cCD Serics-t /2020 hotders.

# l)uring thc
clrrcd 30 -Junc

Prcceding rear [)l .l; (-omrncrcial l)cvclrpcrs Lirnircd 0)(]Dl .) has l>cen mcrgcd wirh I)l .[.'Ikxnc I)t.\

&C;
c \irtiorral (

*l

2022 <f

q

*

liquitl. share caplral 5.00 5.00 5.00

(lompulsorilv (lonvertiblc l)cbenrures 25,170.00 25,170.00

(.ompulsorilr' (.onlcrtiblc [)cbenrurcs 25,170.00 25,170.00

Balance as at 1 April2023 25,170.00 (24,627.36) 89.04 631.68
Profit/(l.oss) for thc r ear (11.70) (11.10)
( )ther (-ornprehensir-e Income 3.76 3.76
Balance as at 31March2024 25,170.00 (24,645.06\ 92.80 617.74
Profit/(Loss) f<rr the vear 2,8-+5,32 2,8+5.32
( )thcr (.ompre lrcnsivc Incomc 6.36 6.36
Balance as at 3l March 2025 25,t70.00 (21,799.74) 99.16 3,469.42

C HARTER tC
ACCOUNTAIiTS

EL

o
.( )nlPiul r l,au 'l'ribunal 

N(-1.'t), (.handigarh Bcnch.

'cLrpers Limircd 0)lIl)1.) r-idc ordcr

Particulars Eqrrity
component of
compulsorily
conveftible
debentures

Reserves and
surplus

Other
comprehensive

income - reserve

Total Equity

Retained Earnings Other items of
other

comprehe[sive
income / (loss;

Particulars Balance as at
rApril 2023

Changes in equity
share capital

during the year

Balance as at
3l]il/.arcb20l?A

Changes in equity
share capital during

the year

Balance as at
3l March fl25

Particulars Balance as at
lLptil8024

Changes in
compulsorily

conyertible debentures during the year

Balance as at
Sl March 2025

Particulars Balance as at
ILpfl?.A?3

Changes in
comptrlsorily

convertible debetrtures during the year

Balqnce as at
3l March 2024



DLF Property Developers Limited
u70100HR2006PLC106417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF city, phase III, Gurugr rm,122002.
Statement of change in equity as at 31 }larchZIZS

(iii) RetainedEarnings
Reprcscnts surplus in statcment <lf Profit and Loss

'l'he acc.mpanving notes arc an inrcgral part of these financial starements.

Based on ()ur rep()rt of er-en date atached.

lior and rxr bchalf of
ARG&Co.LLP
( -harrcrcd

(r(..\r t irm o. 0630N

Kunal

Partner

521269

Place:

Date:01.05.2025

Iior and rm behalf of the board of direcrors of
DLF Property Developers Limited

{iuv"1
fi/

Viclry Arora
Director

DIN:08698913

Rahul Dev Sharma
I)ircctor
I)l\ :092-17397

C HARTE R ED

UNTAI'II)^
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DLF Ptoperty Developers Limited
u7 0 100 H R2006P L Ct064t7
Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF Ciry, Phase III, Gurugram, LZZ}LZ.
Notes to the financial statements fot the year ended 31 March 20Zs

l. Corporateinformation

Nature of operations

The Company was incorporated on August 25, 2006 is engaged in the business of real estate development and
running of lestaurant business. Over the yean, the Company has opened up few restaurants and othet
confectionary oudets with the aim of expanding the curent business.

2. Basis ofpreparation
The financial statemerits of the Company have been prepared in accordance with and comply in all material
asPects with the Indian Accounting Standards fterein referred to as the 'Ind,\S) as notified'by N{inistry of
Corporate AffaLs ('N{CA) under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 ( Act) read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended from time to time and presentation requirements of Division II of
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the financial
statements.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 NIarch 2025 werc authorized and apptoved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 01 NIav 2025.

3. Summary of material accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation

The Frnancial statements have been prepated on going concem basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for
certain Frnancial assets, financial liabilities, derivative financial instruments and share based payrnents which are
measuted at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies. The changes in accounting policies are
explained in note 3(v)

The Frrancial statements are presented in Rupees and all values are tounded to the nearest lakh, except when
otherwise indicated.

b) Current and non-curent classification

The Compan,r' presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ flon-cuffent classification. An
asset is rreated as current when it is:

. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating c1'cle;

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

. Expected to be realised within tweh,e months after the reporting period; or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restdcted from being exchanged or used to setde a liabilig' for at least twelve
months after the reponing period.

All othet assets are classified as non-cuuent.

A liabiliq'is current rvhen:

. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

. It is held primari\, for the purpose of trading;

. It is due to be setded within trveh,e months after the

. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least nvehre months after the

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS

reporting period.

od; or

fr



DLF Ptopery Developers Limited
u 70100 H R2006 P L C106417
Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF Ciry, Phase III, Gurugram, SZZO0Z,
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Maich zozs

The Companl classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.

Th9 opetating $'cle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents.

c) Forcign cutrency ttansactions

Fatc'tiorul atd pnantatiot ctmng
The finzncial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ({) u/hich is also the functional and presentation currency
of the Company.

Tra nvctiorc a t d ba la nc.es

loreign currenq ftansactions are recorded in the functional currenqr, by applying the exchange mte between tle
functional currency and the foreign cuffenct at the date of the transacrion.

Foteign currenq'monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are conlrrted to functional currencv using
the closing rate. Non-monetart items denominated in a foreign curency which ate carried at historical cost ate
reported using the exchange rate at the date of tlle transactions.

Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetan' items, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different
from, those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement oiprofit-and loss in the year in
which they arise.

d) Revenue ftom contract or sefvices with customer and other steams of tevenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when conrol of the goods or services are ftansferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to rvhich the Compan)'expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods ot services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the ptincipal in its revenue arangemenrs
because it tJpically contols the goods and ser*ices before transferdng them to the customers.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from
contmcts with customers are provided in note 3 (w).

i. Revenue ftom Contracts with Customers:

Revenue is measuted at the fair value of the consideration received/receivable, taking into account contractuallr
defined tetms of payrnent and excluding taxes ot duties collected on behalf of the goveLment and is net ofrebates
and discounts. The Companl assesses its re1'enue anangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting
as principal ot agent. The Companl has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue affaflgements.

Revenue is recognised in the Statement of ProFrt and Loss to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Compant and the rer.enue and costs, if applicable, can be meaiured reLiablr.

The Companr has applied five step model as per Ind AS 115 'Rer.enue from contracs \\'ith customersr to
recognise revenue in the Frnancial statements. The Compant' satisfies a performance obligatron and recognises
revenue orer time, if one of the following criteria is met:

a) The customer simultaneousll receires and consumes the benefits provided br- the Companr''s performance as
the Companr performs; or
b) The Companl''s petfotmance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

Iq/cHARTERED
t \nccouNTANTSw s\

I

*l
J
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DLF Property Developers Limited
u70100 H R2006 PL CtD 6417
Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF Ci,y, Phase III, Gurugram, 1Z2OOZ.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Maich z}zs

c) The Companv's performance does not create an asset with an altemative use to the Company and the entity has
an enfotceable right to pa).rnent for performance completed to date.
For petfo-rmance obligations where any of the above ionditions are not met, revenue is rccognised at the point in
time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is recognised either at point of time or over a period of time based on various conditions as included in
the contracts with customerc.

Point of Time:

R€ten e fmn raal-e|tdte pmject|

Revenue is recognised at the Point in Time w.r.t. sale of real estate units, including land, plots, apartrnents,
commetcial units, development rights including development agreements as and when th=. .o.rt-l p"rr.i on to the
customef.

I immeltal roJ, of obtdinifil .\o ra.t

The incremental cost of obtaining a contract u,ith a customer is recognised as an asset if Company expects to
recovet those costs subiect to other conditions of the standard ate met These costs are chargedio statement of
ptofit and loss in accordance with the transfer of the property to the customer.

Ovet a Period of Time:

Other opemtitg incone

Income from forfeinrre ofproperties and interest from banks and customers under agteements to sell is accounted
for on an accrual basis except in cases where ultimate collection is considered doubtfirl.

ii. Volume tebates and eady payment rebates

The Companr prorides move in rebates/ eat\ pavment rebates/ dorln par.ment rebates to the customers. Rebates
are offset against amounts parable b,v the customer and revenue to be recognised. To estimate the rzdable
consideration for the expected future rebates, the Companr estimates the expected value of rebates that are likel1'
to be incurred in future and recognises the revenue net of rebates and recognises the refund liabiliqv for expectei
future rebates-

iii. Contract balances

Conlracl dl'Jel.r

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or sen'ices transferred to the customet. If the
Companv performs br- tansferring goods or sen'ices to x customer before the customer pays consideration or
befote palment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade rctviublet

A receivable represents the Companr''s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only the
passage of time is required before pavment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial
assets in section -1 QFinancial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

W 0(



DLF Property Developers Limited
u 70 100 H R2006 P L Ct064t7
Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF Ci,y, Phase III, Gurugram, 1ZZO0Z.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March zo2s

Contract /iabilitiet

A contract liabiliq' s the obligation to transfer goods or serrices to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (ot an amount of consideration is due) from the customer, If a customer pays conslderation
before the Company_ transfers goods or sen'ices to the customer, a contract liabilitv is recognised when the
Payment is made or the pa;rnent is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised 

"as 
revenue when

the Company performs under the contract.

e) Cost of revenue

Cofi of real e$ate prolects

Cost of constructed properties other than SEZ ptojects, includes cost of land (including cost of deyelopment
rights/land undet agteements to purchase), estimated intemal development costs, extemal developm"nt .h"rg.,,
borowing costs, overheads, construction costs and derrlopment/construction materials, which is charged to"the
statement of proFrt and loss based on the revenue recognized as explained in accounting polig for revinue ftom
leal estate proiects above, in consonance with the concept of matching costs and revenue. Final adjustment is
made on completion of the specific project.

Cot of &tekpnent ightt

Cost of development tights includes proportionate development rights cost, borrowing costs and other related
cost, which is chatged to statement of ptoEt and loss as explained in accounting policy for rwenue, in consonance
with the concept of matching cost and tevenue

f) Borowing costs

Borrowing costs directlv anributable to the acquisition and/or construction,/production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitaiised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrowhg costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss as incured. Borrowing costs
consist of hterest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection vrith the borowing of funds. Bonowing
cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustrnent to the boffo\r.tng costs.

g) Ptopety, plant and equipment

fuoogttition and initial rtedrarencnt

Properfi, Plant and equiPment at theit initial recognition are stated at their cost of acquisition. On transition to Ind
AS, the Companr had elected to measure all of its properw, plant and equipment at the previous G,L\P carmng
value (deemed cost). The cost comprises purchase price, borowing cost if capitalization criteria ar. -.t ^nddirectlr attributable cost of bringing the asset to its *'orking condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and
rebates are deducted in arrir-ing at the purchase price. Subiequent costs are included in the asset's carqing amounr
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, onll rvhen it is probable that future economic benefits aisociated
with the item p'ill florv to the Companr'. \\hen signiFtcant parts ofplant and equipment are required to be replaced
at inten'als, the Companl depreciates them separateh'based on their specific useful lrres. t-rkiwise, *'hen a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the cam'ing amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement
if the recognition criteria ate satisfied. .\[[ othet repair and maintenance .o.t. 

^re 
recogrrir.d in statemeni of proFrt

and loss as incurred. The Companl identiFres and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separate\.,
if the component/ part have a cost rvhich is significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful lifi that is
materialh' different from rhar of the remaining asset.
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Subtequ measunmett (dcprcciatiott and arfut kw)

ProPerg-, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if arr.v. Depreciation on properq, plant and equipment is ptovidei on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows; 

'

Asset categoryrr Estimated useful
life

(in years)

Estimated useful life as per
Schedule II to the Companies

Actr 207j
(in years)

Buildings
Plant and machinen' (General)
Kitchen equipment and utensils
Computers and data processing units

- Servers and nerworks
- Desktops, laptops and other devices

Furniture and f,rxtures
Office ent

The Company, based on technical assessment made bv technical expert and management estimate, depreciates
certah items of building fumiture and fixtures and plant and equipment or.er estirated usefi-rl lives which are
different from the usefi:l iife ptescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act,2013. The management believes that
these estimated useful lives ate realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely
to be used.

De-nrogttition

An item of ProPerq', plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no futwe economic beneFrts are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising orde-
recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carry.ing amouot of
the asset) is included in the statement ofprofit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

h) Capital Wotk-in-pmgrees and intangible assets undet development

Capital work-in-ptogress and intangible assets under development represents expenditure incurred in respect of
capital projects/intangible assets under development and are carried at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any.
Cost includes land, related acquisition expenses, development/construction cost, borrorving costs and other direct
expenditutes.

i) Intangible assets

llerugnition ud ititia/ rT,edruftmeit

Intangible assets acquired separateh' are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acqu ed in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. On transition to Ind .\S, the
Companl had elected to measute all of its intangible assets at the previous G.l,\P carn'ing value (deemed cost).
The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitahzatton criteria are met and directlr. attributable cost of
bnnging the asset to its rvorking condition for the intended use. Internalll generated intangibles, excluding
capitalised der.elopment costs, ate not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in the statement of proFrt
and loss in the period in rv'hich the expenditure is incurred.

20-60 60

r5
15

8

8

a
J
a)
8

5

6
a
J

8

5

\*\ N



DLF Property Developers Limited
u 70100 H R2006P L Ct} 6417
Mezzanine Floot, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF Cit-y, Phase III, Gurugram, L2IOOZ.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March zozs

The Company has acquired exclusive usage rights for 30 veats under the build, own, operate and tmnsfer scheme
in ':espect of ptopcrties developed as automated multilerel cat parking and commerciaj space and classifred them
undet the'Intangible Assets - fught under build, own, op.r^t. 

"rrd 
t"".rrfa. 

"ffangement,.

Subrcquent measunme (dnlrtiratiltt)

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if anlThe cost of capitalized software is amortized over a period of 5 1.ears ftom the date ofits
acquisition.

The cost of.usage rights is being amortised over the concession period in the proportion in which the actual
revenue teceived during the accounting year bears to the projected revenue ftom suchintangible assets till the end
of concession period.

De-nngnition

' Gains or losses arising ftom detecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carn'ing amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement ofprofit and loss when
the asset is de-tecognised.

i) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
convers the right to conftol the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single tecognidon and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-r'alue assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease prprr.t t and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the undedl.ing assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Companl'_ recognises right-of-use assets at. the commeflcement date of the lease (i.e., the date the undetly'ing
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets ate measured at cost, less an). accumulated depreciation 

'anJ

impairment losses, and adjusted for anv re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities tecognised, initial direct costs incurted, and lease pr;rrr.ois made at or before the
corunencement date less anv lease incentives receir.ed. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the lease term as follows:

Asset ca Lease term
Land
Buildings
Assets taken on lease for golf operations

If orwership of the leased asset ransfers to the Companl at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated usefirl life of the asset.

The righcof-use assets are also subiect to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 2.2(p) on
Impairment of non-financial assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Companl recognises Iease Liabilities measured at the present value of
lease par-rnents to be made over the lease tetm. The lease parrnents include Erxed pal-rnents (including in-substance
Ftxed parrnents) less anl lease incentives receivable, r.ariable lease parrnents that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts espected to be paid under residual value gqagantee-s. The lease pat'ments also include the exercise price o[ a

28-36 \:ears

3-16 r.ears

6 vears
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purchase_ option reasonably certain_to be exercised by the Company and pa)'ments of penalties for terminating the
Iease, if the lease term reflects the Companl' exercising the option to tetminate. Variable lease payments that do'not
depend on an index ot a tate ?re recognised as e*penies in the period in which the event o. ctndition that triggers
the pal'ment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease pa\-ments, the Companv uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determLable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease pavments made. In addition, the caming amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future pa1'ments resulting from a change
in an index or tate used to detetmine such lease payments) or a change in the assisiment of an oplon to purchaie
the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e. those leases that har.e
a lease term of 12 months ot less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the lease of lov-value assets recognition exemption to leases of assets that ate considered to-be low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Company as a lessot

Iteasel in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classiEed as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a staight-line baiis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial dfuect costs incurred in negotiating and aranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are rccognised as rei-enue in the period in vhich ther ate eamed. Fit-out rental income is
recognised in the statement ofprofit and loss on accrual basis.

Leases are classiFred as finance leases when substantiallv a]l of the risks and rewards of ormership ttansfer from the
Company to the lessee.,\mounts due flrom lessees under frnance leases are recorded as receivables at the
Company's net invesunent in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate ofrenrm on the net inr.estment outstanding in respect of the lease.

k) Impaitment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Companr assesses whether there is any indication based on intemal/extemal factors,
that an asset mar be impaired. If anr such indication exists, the Company esdmates the recoverable amount of the
asset. An asset's recovetable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGL) fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use, Recovemble amount is determined for an individual asseq unless the asset does not
genemte cash inflorvs that are largeli' independent of those ftom other assets or groups of assets. \\hen the
carq-ing amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss, hcluding impairment on inventories, is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated futute cash flons are discounted to their pfesent value using a pre-ta\
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of moner- and the risks speciFrc to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations ate corroborated bt'
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publiclr taded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Companl'bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculation. These budgets and
forecast calculations generallv cover a period of Frve vears. For longer periods, a long term gtowth rate is calculated
and applied to proiect furure cash florvs after the fifth vear
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If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a prwiously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessed, and the asset is reflected at the recovirable amount. Impa-irment losses
previouslv recognized are accordinglv revesed in the statement ofproErt and loss.

l) Financialinstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entiq' and a financial Liabiliq. or
equin instrument of another entiq.

(1) Financial assets

I tial rengritior and meayrement
Financial assets ate classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprchensive income (OCI) and fair value through pro6t or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash florv
chatacteristics and the Company's business model for managing them. \X'ith the exception of trade receivables that
do not contain a significant Frnancing component or for rvhich the Company has applied the practical expedient,
the Companv initially measures a Frnancial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a Frnancial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, net of ttansaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a signiFrcant Enancing
comPonent or for which the Companv has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction prici
detetmined under Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts rvith customers'. Refer to the accounting policies in seition
3 (d)( i) 'Revenue ftom conuacts with customers'.

In ordet fot a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair r.alue through OCI, it needs to
give dse to cash flovrs that ate 'soleh palments of principal and fuiterest (SPP!' on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an insttument level.

The Companr's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order
to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting conuactual
cash flows, selling the financial assets or both.
Subnqaent meaurcme

i. Financial assets cetried at amortised cost - the financial assets is measured at amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

Contracfual terms of the asset give rise on specif,ied dates to cash flows that are solely pavments of
principal and interest (SPPD on the principal amount ourstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequendv measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method.

ii. Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries, ioint ventures and associates - Invesrmenrs in
equin' instruments o[ subsidiaries, joint venrures and associates are accounted for at cost in accordance \\dth
Ind AS 27 'Separate Financial Staternents'.

Investments in other equity instruments - Investments in equitv instruments rvhich are held for trading
are classihed as atfarr value through profit or loss (F\ITPL). For all other equiq,instruments, the Companl.
makes an irrevocable choice upon initial recognition, on an instrument bv instrument basis, to classifi' the
same either as at fairu'alue through other comprehensive income F\rOCI) or fair value through prof,it or
Ioss (F\TPL). Amounts presented in grh6r'poqprehensive income are not subsequenth. transferred to
Statementofprolrtandloss.Ho.,'."ffiftansferSthecumulativegainorlosswithinequin,.
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Dividend on such investments are recognised in staternert of proFrt and loss unless the dividend clea;v
represents a recove$. ofpart of the cost ofthe investnent.

iv' Investmente in mutual funde - Investments in mutual funds are measured at fait value through profit or
loss (FVTPL).

Fait value changes on instruments measured at FVTPL is recognised in the Statement of profit and Loss unless the
Company has elected to measute such instrument at F\toCII. Fair value changes on l"r,r"-*" measured atFVOCI are recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequent\: reclassified to th. Stat.r.rent of
Profit and Loss.

De-nngtitiot off mrcial arna
A.frnancial asset (or, whete applicable, a part of a Frnancial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
ptimadly derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company,s balance sheet) when:"

o The rights to receive cash flows ftom the asset have expired; or
t The comPany has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to

pay the teceived cash flows in frrll without material dela)'to a third parry'under a 'pass-through, arangement;
and either- (a) the Companr has. transferred substantially all the risks'and rewards of th. irs.t, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asser.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over tle transfelred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carfing amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
requircd to repay.

(2) Non-derivative financial liabilities

hitial rcngnitiot a mea ./rert2e t
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as Frnancial liabilities at fat value through profit or [oss,
loans and borrowings and par.ables, net of directlr attributable transacdon costs.

The Company's financial i.iabilities include trade and other palables, securitl deposits, loans and borrowings and
other financial liabilities including bank overdtafts and financiai guarantee contracts.

Stbuquent meaunment

lubslu1lt to initial recognition, the measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as
described below:

Laans a bonruingt

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrorvings are subsequentlr measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in staiement of proFrt'and loss rvhen the liabilities are
derecognised as rvell as through the FIR amottisation process. Amortisei cost is calculated b\. taking into accounr
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the gtn. 1-ne pn
amortisation is included as Ftrance costs in the statement of ptofit and loss.

Firunlial graarat lee co rdL:lr

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that require a pal'rnent to be made to reimburse the holdet for a
loss it incurs because the specified parn fails to make a palment s'hen due in accordance vith the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a financial liabilin- at the time the guarantee is issued at
fair talue, adiusted for transaction costs that are dtictii anributable to the issuance of the gualntee. .subsequenth.,
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J

the liabilitr is measured at the.higher of the amount 
_of 

expected loss allowance determined as per rmpaitment
requifements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulatir.e amortization.

De-rc'ugtiriot ot.fi rut"iel liubilitkt

'\-Frnancial liabilin' is de-recognised w'h9n the obligation undet the Liabiliq. is discharged or cancelled ot expires.
\\hen an existing financial liabiliq'is reptaced bl another from the same lender on subitantiallv different terms, or
the terms of an existing liabiLitr- are substantiallr modiFred, such an exchange or modiFrcation is treated as the de-
recognition of the original habilin' and the recognition of a nerv liabiliq.. Tie difference in the respective carrling
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

(3) Reclassilication of financial insruments

The Compan.r detetmines classification of linancial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition' no reclassification is made fot financial assets vhich are equiq. instruments and Frlancial liabi.lities. For
financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassiFrcation is made only if there is a change in the business model
for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are .*p..t d to be infrequentl The Company,s senior
management detetmines change in the business model as a result of external o; intemal changes *hi.h ,".
significant to thc Company's operations. Such changes are evident to extemal parties. A change ii the business
model occurs when the Company.eithet begins ot ceases to perform an actir"iq that is significani to its operations.
If- 

1h9 
Company reclassifies financial assets,It applies the reclassiEcation prospectir.ely frot the reclassiFrcation date

which is the first day of the immediatell next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate anl- previouslv recognised gains, losses (including lmpaitm."igainr or losses) or interest.

(4) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currendv enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to rezlise the assets and setde the Liabilities simultaneoush,.

m) Fair value meaaurement

The Companv measures financial instuments such as derir.ative instruments etc. at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair value is the price that would be receir.ed to sell an asset or paid to trarisfer a liabilin in an order\
ftansaction betrveen market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of an asset Lr a 1abilitr. is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liabilin, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measuremJnt of a non-Flrancial asset takei
into accoun-t.a market Pafiicipant\ abdrtr- to genemte economic beneFrts bt using the asset in its highest and best
use ot by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

-

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for vhich sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobsen'able inputs.

All assets and liabilities for rvhich fair r-alue is measured or disclosed in the financial shtements are categonsed
wrthin the fair value hierarchr', described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is signiFrcant to the fair
value measutement xs a \!hole:

. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in actire markets for identical assets or liabilities.

. Level 2 - \raluation techniques for rvhich the lorvest level input that is signihcant to the fair value
measurement is directll or indirecth- obser-able.

. Level 3 - \'aluation techniques for rvhich the lorvest level input that is significant to the fair ralue
measurement is unobsen able. .
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For asse6 and liabitties that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recuring basis, the
Companl determines whether transfers have occurted between levels in the hierarchy bv ie-assessing
cateSorisation (based on the lowest level input that is signiEcant to the fair value -."r*.-.rr, ". 

a whole) at thl
end of each reponing period.

n) Convertibleinstruments

Convertible instruments are separated into liabiliq' and equitl components based on the terms of the contact. On
issuance of the convetible instmments, the fair value of the liabiliry component is determined using a market rate
for an equivalent non-convenible instument. This amount is classified as a financial liability measurJd at amortised
cost (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on conrersion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included h equitl since
convesion option meets Ind AS 32'Financial Instruments Presentation' criteria for Frxed-to-fixed ctassification.
Tnnsaction costs are deducted from equiq, net of associated income tax. The carr;ing amount of the conversion
option is not remeasured in subsequent vears.

Ttansaction costs are apportioned between the liabili$ and equitt' components of the convenible instruments
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liabilitl and equiq. components rvhen the instruments are initialy
recognised.

o) Impairment of financial assets

In accotdance with Ind-AS 109 'Financial Instruments', the Companv applies expected ctedit loss @,CL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss fot fiaancial assets.

ECL is the weighted-average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
zccordance u,ith the contract and all the cash flows that the Companv expects to receive, discounted at the triginal
effective interest rate, rvith the respective dsks of default occuring as the weights. \\'hen estimating the cash flows,
the Company is required to consider -
o All conftactual tenns of the financial assets (including prepa.vment and extension) or.er the expected life of the

assets.

o Cash flows from the sale of collateral held ot other credit enhancements that are integtal to the contractual
tefms.

Tmde rcreiaablet

In respect of trade receir.ables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109 Financial Instrumerits,
rvhich requires measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected cedit losses. Lifetime
expected credit losses ate the expected ctedit losses that result &om a[[ possible default elents ovet the expected
life of a financial instrument.

Other.firutcial awtt
In respect of its other Ftnancial assets, the Companr assesses if the credit risk on those Frnancial assets has

increased signiFrcandl since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased sigmficantly since initial
recognition, the Companr measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month erpected credit losses, else
at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

\\hen making this assessment, the Companv uses the change in the risk of a default occurdng
life of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a defaul
financial asset as at the balance sheet date s,'rth th.e-$.'kqf,qdeflault occurring on the financial ass

initial recognition and considers reasonabl. 
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effon, that is indicative of signiFrcant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes rhat
the ctedit risk on a financial asset has not increased signiFrcantlv since initiai-recognition if the financial asset is
determined to hal.e lorv credit risk at the balance sheet date.

p) Inventories

Land and plots other than area transferred to constructed properties at the commencement of construction are
valued at lorver of cost/as re-valued on con\:ersion to stock and net realisable l,alue. Cost includes land
(including development rights and land under agreement to purchase) acquisition cost, borrowing cost if
inventorisation criteria are met, estimated internal development costs and external de'u,elopment chaiges and
other directlv attributable costs.

Constnrction work-in-progress of constructed properties other than Special Economic Zone (SEZ) proie6s
includes the cost of land (including development flghts and land under agreements to purchase), lnternal
development costs, extemal development charges, construction costs, overheads, borro*ing cost if
inventorisation criteria are met, der-elopment/ construction materials and is valued at lorver of costfestimated
cost and net realisable value.

In case of SEZ projects, construction v'ork-in-progtess of constructed properties include internal development
costs, external development charges, constfuction costs, overheads, borrowing cost if inventorisation criteria
are met, development/construction materials and is valued at lower of cost/estimated cost and net realisable
value.

a

a

a

Development rights represent amount paid under agreement to purchase land/development rights and
borrowing cost incurred bv the Company to acquire irrevocable and exclusive licenses/development rights in
the identified land and constructed properties, the acquisition of rvhich is either complered or is at an advanced
stage. These are valued at lorver of cost and net realisable value.

Construction/development material is valued at lower o[ cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises of
purchase price and other costs incured in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Stocks for maintenance facilities (including stores and spares) are r.alued at cost or net realisable value,
rvhichever is lower.

Cost is determined on rveighted-average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinan' course of business less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs ofnecessafl. to make the sale.

q) Taxes

Carrenl innme lux

Tax expense recognised in statement of proht and loss compdses the sum of deferred tax and current tax except
the ones recognised in other comptehensive income or directlr in equin.

Current income ta\ assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. Current tas is determined as the tax palable in respect of taxable income for the vear and is
computed in accordance with relevant tas regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside
statement of proFrt and loss is recognised outside statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensir.e

a

a

a
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DLF Property Developers Limited
u70100 H R2006P L Ctu 6417
Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF City, Phase III, Gurugram, 1ZZOOZ.
Notes to the financial statements for the yeat ended 31 March zLzs

Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlfing transaction either in OCI or directly in equit1..
Nlanagement periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums vith respect to situations in whicli applicabie
tax regulations are subiect to interpretation and establishes pror-isions where appropriate.

In the situations where one or more units/undertaking in the Companv are entitled to a tax holidal'under the
Income-hx Act, 1961, no deferred tax (asset or liabiliq) is recognized in respect of temporary differences which
t.Yt: d"l"q the_ tax holidal, period, to the extent the concemed entiq.'s gross total income is subject to the
deduction during the tax holidav period. Deferred tax in respect of temporarJ' differences which rer.erse after the
tax holidat' period is recognized in the rear in nrhich the temporarr. differences odginate. However, the Companv
restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent it is probable that sufficieni future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the temporaly
differences vrhich originate fust are considered to reverse fust.

Defened tax

Deferted tax is provided using the liabilig' method on temporary differences benveen the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and thet cam'ing amounts for Enancial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Defered tax liabilities arc recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

In respect of taxable temporan' differences associated with inr-estments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in ioint ventures, rvhen the timing of the rer.ersal o[ the temporarv differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporan: differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

a

Deferred tax assets are recognised fot all deductible tempora$' differences, the carn- forward of unused tax cedits
and anv unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporaq' differences and the cam' forwatd of unused ta-x ctedits and
unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carn'ing amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced ro the extent that it is no
Ionger probable that sufFrcient taxable proFrt will be available to allorv all or part of the defered tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised defered tax assets ate re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that fun:re tarable proFrts vill allow the deferred tax asset to be rccovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities ate measured at the tax rates that are expected to applr in the rear when the asset
is realised ot the liabilin is setded, based on tax rates (and tax [aws) that have been enacted ot substantively enacted
at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statemeot of profit and loss is recognised
outside statement of proFrt ot loss (either in othet comprehensive income or in equin). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the undedr.ing transaction either in OCI or directh. in equin.

r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equiralents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and in hand and short-term deposits rvith an
original maturin' of three months or less, v'hich are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flons, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as thel are considered an integtal part of the
Companr''s cash management.
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DLF Property Developers Limited
u70100H R2006P L Ctu 6417
Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF Cir,u, Phase III, Guru gram) lz200z.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March z}zs

s) Retirement and other employee benefrts
Proaidentlatd

Retitement benefit in the form of provident fund is a deFrned benefit scheme. The Companv makes contributionto statuto{' provident fund trust set up in accordance with the Employees' provident irrrd, ,rrd N{iscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952. The Companr. has to meet the interest shortfall, if anl,. Accordingly, the contribution paid or
pavable and the interest shotfall, if any,.is recognised as an expense in the period in wlich services ate rendered by
the emploree. If the contribudon pamble to the scheme for sen ice teceived before the balance sheet date exceeds
the contribution already paid, the deFrcit palzble to the scheme is recognized as z liabilitl after deducting thecontribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contibution due fo. ,.kce, received before
the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized ,r 

-rr, 

".a"t 
to the extent that th. pr.-payrrrent vrtl lead to, for

example, a reduction in futue palment or a cash refund.

Crdrui|
Gratuitf is post-employment beneFrt and is in the nature of a defrned benefit plan. The iiabiliq. recogn.ised in the
financial sratements in resPect of_granriq'is the present value.of the defined benefit obiigatiJn at iire reporting
fate, -toggther 

\''ith adjustments for unrecognised acn:arial gains or losses and past sen'i'ce costs, The defined
benefit/obligation is calculated at or rear the reporting datJr. an independent acn 

^ry 
,rrirrg the pro,ected unit

credit method. This is based on standard rates of inflation, r"lrn gro.rrth rate and mor;arw. 6i..orrrr, factols are
determined.close to each vear-end b)'.:{::i:" to market )ields on goremment bonds that have terms to maturiq.
approximating the terms of the related liabilic. Sen'ice cost and nit interest expense on the Company,s definei
bene[rr plan is included in statement ofproflt and [oss.

Actuanal gains/losses resulting from te-measurements of the liabiliq are included in other comprehensive hcome
in the period in which thev occur and are not teclassified to statement ofprofit and loss in subseluent periods..

Compenated ahernt

Iibm,) T respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within one year from the
balance sheet date is recognised on the basis of discounted r.alue of estimated amount required io be paid or
estimated I'alue of benefit expected to be availed br the emplolees. Liabilitv in respect of cotpensated absences
becoming due or expected to be availed more than orre y."iafi.r the balanie sheei date is .rtiri-rrt.d on the basis
of an acn:arial valuation performed b\- an independent actuart using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from palt experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged to
statement of prorrt and loss in the vear in which such gains or losses ate determined.

Pention

Pension is a post-emplorrnent benefit and is in the nature of a defined beneFrt pran. The liabilin tecognised in the
balance sheet in respect of pension is the present value of the deFrned beneFrt obligation 

"t 
th. t"hrr.. sheet date,

together with adiustments for unrecognised actuadal gains or losses and past sei-ice costs. The defined bene6t
obligation is calculated at ot neat the balance sheet date br an independent actu"n ,.irrg the projected unit credit
method. This is based on standard rates of in{lation. salan gros,th ,ate 

"rrd 
mo.tatn. rii.gorn, factors are

determined.close to each lear-end bv reference to market vielis on govemment bonds thai have terms to maturit'
approximating the terms of the retaied liabirin'. Sen'ice .ort o. theto-p"rrr,, a.r..a i..r.fi;;il;;ffi;];
Tplo1.e-e 

benefits expense. Net interest .*p.n.. on the net defined benefii [abilin is includei in hnance costs.
'\cruanal gain-s/losse-s resultrng from re-measurements of the liabilin' are included in other comprehensire income
in the period in rv-hich ther occur and are not reclassiFred to statement of profit and loss in subse'quent periods.

#
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DLF Property Developers Limited
u70100 H R2006P L C106417
Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF Cir.n, Phase III, Gurugram, 1ZZO0Z.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 20zs

S hort+rm enp lq'ee be n €l tr
Expense in rcspect of shot term benehts is recognised on the basis of the amount paid or payable fot the period
during which services are rcndered by the emplolee. Contribution made torvards superannuation fund (funded bv
pa)'ments to Life Insurance Corporation of India) is chalged to statement ofprofrt and loss on accrual basis.

t) Ptovisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized onlv when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of past events,
and it is ptobable that an outflow of resources embodving economic beneFrts will be requited to settle the
obligation and when a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. Provisions
are discounted to their present values, whete the time r.alue of money is material, using a iurent pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks speciFrc to the liabilitl'. \\'hen discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a {inance cost.

\trtren the Companv expects some or all of a provision to be reimbutsed, the reimbursement is tecognised as a
separate asset, but onlr when the reimbursement is \+tuall)' certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of anv reimbursement.

Onerous contracts

If the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision. However, before a separate prorision for an onerous contract is established, the
Company recognises ant'impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contact.

An onerous contract is a cofltract under vhich the unar.oidable costs (i,e. the costs that the Company cannot avoid
because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations under the conttact exceed the economic benefits expected
to be teceived under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the
contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to
tulfilit.

These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the curreflt best estimates.

Contingent liabiliq is disclosed for:
o Possible obligations which srill be confirmed onlv by future events not whollv within the control of the

Company or
. Present obligations arising from past events rvhere it is not probable that an outflow of resources u,ill be

required to setde the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is r.irtual\. certain, related
asset is disclosed.

u) Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated bl dividing the net proht ot loss for the period attributable to equi6
shateholders (after deducting attributable taxes) bl the w'erghted ar.erage number of equitl. shates outstanding
during the period. The rveighted average number of equiq' shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of
shares) that have changed the number of equitr shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resotuces.

I
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DLF Property Developers Limited
u7 0100H R2006P L Cto 6417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Bloclq DLF City, Phase III, Gurugram, 122002.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equiq
shareholders and the rveighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equiry shares.

v) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards

The Companv applied for the Frst-time certzin standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
begrnning on or after 1 April2024, but do not have a material impact on the financial statements ofthe Company.

lnd AS I 16: Leases - "f\e N{CA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules,
2024, which amended Ind AS 116, kases, with respect to Lease Liabiliw in a Sale and Leaseback. The amendment
specifies the requiremeflts that a selledessee uses in measuring the lease liabiliq' arising in a sale and leaseback
ttansaction, to ensure the selledessee does not tecognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of
use it tetains. The amendment is effective fot annual reporting period.s beginning on ot after 1 April 2024 and
must be applied retrospectively to sale and Ieaseback ransactions entered into after the date of initial application of
Ind AS 116.

These amendments had no material impact on the financial statements of the Companr during the year.
lnd AS I 17: lnsurqnce - The Nhnistry of Corporate Affairs @ICA) not.ified the Ind AS 117, Insutance Contracts,
vide notification dated 12 August 2021, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
202,1, rvhich is effective from annual reporting pedods beginning on or after 1 Apil2024.

Ind AS 117 Insurance Conuacts is a comprehensive new accounting standard fot insurance conEacts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosue. Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104 Insutance Contracts.
Ind AS 117 applies to all tlpes of insurance contracts, regardless of the type of entities that issue them as $/ell as to
certain guarantees and Ftnancial instruments with disctetiona4' participation features; a few scope exceptions will
applr.. Ind AS 117 is based on a general model, supplemented by:

. A speciFrc adaptation fot contracts with dtect participation features (the variable fee approach); and

. A simpiifred approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts.

These amendments had no material impact on the Frrancial statements of the Companv during the,vear.

New and amended standards, not yet effective

There are no standards that are notified and not vet effective as on the date.

w) Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Companr-'s financial statements requires management to make iudgements, estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, e\penses, assets and liabilities, and the telated

disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilines. Uncertainn about these assumptions and estimates could

result in outcomes that requite a material adjustment to the catn'ing amount of assets or liabilities affected in
furure periods.

Signifi cant management iudgements
The following are signiFrcant management judgements in apph'ing the accounting policies of the Companv that

have the most significant effect on the financial statements.

Recognition oJ'de-fined tax txrtt - The assets can be recognized is based on an assessment

deferred tax assets can be utilized.
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DLF Property Developers Limited
u70100 H R2006 PL Ct064t7
Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF Ciry, Phase III, Gurugram, 1ZZO0Z.
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March ZLZi

Eualualiott o-f indicatort -for inpairm€ of asett - The evaluation of applicabi.liqv of indicators of impairment of assets
tequires assessment of several extemal and intemal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable
amount of the assets.

Clast$tatiott oJ leaset - The Company enters into leasing arangements for various assets. The classiFrcation of the
leasing arrangement as a finance lease ot operating lease is based on an assessment of ser.eral factors, including, bur
not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee's option to purchase and estimated
cettaintr of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset's 

".orro*i. 
life, proportion of present

value of minimum lease paments to fait value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset.

Determiting the lease tenl, o-f Lv,,tractr ,)ith rercaal and terminatior o?tilfi (Company as lessee)- The Compant' determines
the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with an1. periods covered by an option to extend
the lease ifit is reasonablv certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate ihe lease, if it is
reasonably cettain not to be exercised. The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and
tetmination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not
to exercise the option to fenew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the cornmencement date, the
Companl' reassesses the Iease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its
control and affects its abilifi'to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to teminate (e.g., construction of
signi[rcant leasehold improvements or signiEcant customisation to the leased asset).

Inpaiment of.ftaaruial aret - At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates obsen'ed over expected
life, the management assesses the erpected credit loss on outstanding financial assets.

Prwisiottt - At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the
Companv assesses the requitement of prorisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. Horvever, the actual
future outcome ma1- be different from this judgement

Rewwe fmn co raL:t 1t)ith LY;tlneri- The Company has applied judgements that significantlv affect the determination
of the amount and timing ofrevenue ftom conhacts s,ith customers.

Significant estimates

The key assumptions conceming the future and other kev sources of estimation uncertainB at the repofting date,
that have a signiFrcant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carn ing amounts of assets and liabilities, are
described belov. The Compan'i'based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, hower-er, mal
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are bevond the control of the Companv. Such changei
are reflected in the assumptions rvhen ther. occur.

Net realiqable ulue of inaento4 -'I"be determination of net realisable value of inrentory invoh.es estimates based on
prevailing matket conditions, current prices and expected date of commencement and completion of the ptoject,
the estimated future selling pdce, cost to complete projects and selling cost. The Companr also involves specialist
to petform valuations of inventories, rvherer.er required.

Ll:eJul lit'et o/' depnci /e/ anortitabh arets - N.Ianagement reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reponing date, based on the expected utilin of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that mal change the utilih. of assets.

l.'alaation ol inutnefi PrupeA - Investrnent properq- is stated at cost. Horver.er, as per Ind AS .10 'Inr.estment
Properh'' tl-rere is a requirement to disclose fair valqe as-, at the balance sheet date. The Compan)' engaged

investment propern- as at reporring date. The

'1

I

I'hJ v

independent valuation specialists to determine the oi its
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DLF Property Developers Limited
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Mezzanine Floot, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF City, Phase III, Gurugram, 122002.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March zlzs

determination of the fart value of investment properties requires the use of estimates such as future cash florrn
from the assets (such as lettings, futute revenue streams, capital values of fixtures and fittings, any environmental
matters ald the ovetall repait and condition of the propern) and discount rates applicable to ihose assets. In
addition, development dsks (such as construction and letting risk) are also taken into consideration when
determining the fair value of the properties under construction. These estimates are based on local market
conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

Inpairne* o;f Pnperg pla t eqt/iPtle ,Iruert e tpnpertier a CWIP - Impaiment exists when the cam.ing value of an
asset or cash generating unit exceeds its tecoverable amount, vhich is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived
ftom the budgets. The recoretable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used.

Defrcd bereft oblgatior @BO) - Iuanagement's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of unde;.,ving
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortaligv, discount rate and anticipation of fun:te salary increases.
Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined beneht expenses.

Fair uahae mea ftmert ditdoruns - N{anagement applies rzluation techniques (inctuding but not limited to the use of
illiquidiq' discount on investments) to determine the fair value of Frnancial instruments (where active market quotes
are not available). This involves developing esdmates and assumptions consistent with how market participants
would price the instrument.

(thh qace has been intentionalll left blank)
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Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gatewat-To\f,'er, R Bloclq DLF Cin, Phase III, Gurugrarnr122002.
Notes to the financial statements as at3lMarch2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
4. and e

Gross block
Balance as at 1 Lpal2023
.\ddrtrons

[)isposals
Balance as at 31March2024

.\dditions
Disposals

Balance as at 31M.arch2025

Depreciation
Balance as at l April 2023

l)cpreciation cl'rarge frrr the veirr

l)isposals

Balance as at 31March2024
l)eprecratron chargc frrr the vcar

Drsposals

Balance as at 31 March 2025

Net block
Balance as at 31March2025
Balance as at 31 March 2024

4A. Other assets

Gross carn'ing value
Balance as at 1 Apil2023
-\d<-htrons

Disposals

Balance as at 31is,{,arch2024

. \dditirxrs
[)isposals

Balance as at 3l March 2025

Amortisation and impairment
Balance as at l April 2023

l)eprcctati<ln chargc for the vcar

Disposals

Balance as at 31March2024
I)epreciirtion cl'rargc tirr the lc'.rr

Disposals

Balance as at 31 March 2025

nt

4t.94
-10.80

128.66

69.70

57.76 22.07

1.65

250.40

1L2.t5

82.74 198.36 57.76 23.72 362.55

68.96 0.65 20.49 16.93 107.03

82.74 267.32 0.65 78.25 40.65 469.59

31.68

11.13

70.17

10..+5

49.74

1.65

16.40

1.99

167.99

25.22

42.81 80.62 51.39 18.39 193.21

r 5.78 19.40 0.02 1.78 3.e0 40.88

58.59 100.02 0.02 53.fi 22.29 234.09

24.t5 167.30 0.63 2s.08 18.37 235.52

1t7.74 6.37 s.33 169.37

4.03

4.03

4.03

4.03

4.03

4.03

Net carn'ing value

Balance as at 31 March 2025

Balance as at 31 March 2024

(i) Contractual obligations
\() c()nfracturl cornmitments [rrr thc ircquisrtron oIpnrpern', plant nnd ccluipmcnt

(iii) Capitalised borrou"ing cost
\o borrou'inq c()st arc caprtaltscd during thc currcnt r-ear and prcr-ious

{
Ic

T(
\ L.,tr.

hu

V

Computers Total
Furniture

and fixrures

HARTE R

39.93

(ii) Propertr plant and equipment pledged as securitr-

\o plirnr ancl equrpmcnt plcclged as securitl for borros'ings br rhe (.onrprurr

1̂{

.)/

l.easehold Plant and Ofrice

Sofnvare
Particulars



DLF Property Developers Limited
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Mezznine Floor, DLF Gateway Tor*'er, R Bloclq DLF City, Phase-III, Gurugram-122002
Notes to the financial statements as ar 3l March 2025

48. 'w'ork-in, in Lakhs

Capital rvork-in-progress' 20.30

20.30

(r) Capital \{'ork-in-Pr()gress includes Nil previous Year < 20.30I-akhs) on account of Capital C}oods Inventon'

(b) Capital \\'ork-in-Progress Ageing:

As at 31st 2025 in Lakhs

As at 31st 2024 in Lakhs

*I)uring rhe lear, the Companr resoh'ed ro discontinue the development of certain upcoming rcstaurenr sites rhat werc undet consmrction. Is a

result, the opening balance of Capita.l V'ork in Progess (CWIP) penaining to leasehold impmvemmts and other related expmses has beeo
written off and charged o the Statement of Ptofit and I.oss..

(fbis qace bas been intentionallj left blank)

Progess in l)roiects

Total

I)rogcss in Projects-" 20.30 20.30

Total 20.30 20.30

,l'.n3'Q\
ffim,Llft',il")Y\ /./\W/

tr

As at
31st March 2025

Particulars As
31st March

Amount in CWIP for a period of TotalCWIP
Less than l year 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 years

Amount io CWIP for a period of TotalCTTIP
kss than l year 1-2 years 2-3 vears More than 3 vears



DLF Propertv Developers Limited
u70 100H R2006PLCt064t7
Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Bloclq DLF City, Phase III, Gurugram,122002.
Notes to the financial statemenrs as ar 3l March 2025

5. Other Financials Assets

(L.'nsccured, considered good unless
othenvisc statcd)

Llnbilled revcnue

186.-+

1,059.36

500.00

in Lakhs

5 r 5.93

55.01

Securin deposits*
.{dvance recoverable in cash

from other
from rclated part)''

* Rcfer note no.33

6. Deferred Tax Assets (ne't1

(a) Component of deferred tax asset (net)
Defcrred tax assets (net)

-L-lnabsorbed business losses, depreciation and
amortisati(xl

7. Non current tax assets (net)
Income tax paid (nct oIprovisions)

8. Other assets
(-onsidercd go<>d

.\dvancc to Strpplicrs

I)rcpaid expcnsc

191.28

115.16

6.15
197.28 186.74 1,741,.57 570.94

+l ".50
417.50

l3+.8-t 3+.13
134.84 34.t3

083

l5-t. I 1

361.91

-+78.59

307.89
0.83 522.02 786.48

Opening balance as of the beginning of the year
l)efcrrcd ta.x durirrg the vear recogniscd in statement
protit arrd loss

Closing balance as at the end of the year
+ l-.50
477.50

(Tltis qace ltas lteen intentional/1, lqlt blank)

,"

Current
As at As at

31March2025 3lMatch2024

Non-current

Particulars
As at

31March2025
As at

3tMatch2A24

Particular 31st March,2025 3lst March,2024 31st March,2025 31st March,2024



DLF Property Developers Limited
u70 l00HR2006PLCt064l7
Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF city, phase III, Gurugram, lzzoo2.
Notes to the financial sratements as at 31 March2025

Particulars

9. Inventories*
fr'alued at cost or net realisable I'alue, rvhichcver is los,cr)

-Food
-ller,crages (excluding liquor and rvine)
- Stores and opcrating supplies
-Land, Plors & Constnrction wotk in progress**

10, Trade receivables

(a) T'tadc Receivables considered good - Secured

ft) 1'rade Rcceir.ables considered good - Unsecured;^

I..ess : allou,ance for expected credit loss

As at
3LMarch2025

7.24
0.20

13,1)06.22

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at
31March2024

4,21
1.09

8,105.23

13,013.66 8,110.53t N<-> item olinventory have pledged as sccuritv for arry liabilitics.

r+ lle Pescnted fi8urc denots rhe dsclopmeot .oit! 
'ncufted 

by $e comp.n', d dedop.rs, for rh. constru(ion of indep.ndef,t fl@s sit red in pha* p, Gursof! Harrina

classifi.d under inrntory as d$doptrnr rights

116.96 9.13

1,176.96 9.73

I,t76.96 9.73

A of trade rcceivable for thc ended 31 March, 2025

Particulars
s ue

Not due Less than 6 months 6months-lyear I - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years

(i) Undisputcd'I'rade receivables - considered good 1,059.36 117.rr.) 1,17(t.96
(ii) LlndispLrtcd 'fradc llcceivablcs - t,hich have significant increase
in crcdit risk

(iii) Undispurcd -I'ra{c llcceivablcs - credit impaircd
(ir) Disputed l rade llcccirables- considcrc'd good
(r) Disputcd 'l'radc lleceivables - rvhich havc significanr incrcase in
crcrlit nsk

(r'r) I)isputcd 'l'radc llcccir.ablcs - crcdrr irnpaircd
'l otal 1,0s9.36 117.60 1,176.96

Total

Particulars
ate o Total

Not due Less than 6 months 6months-lyear 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years

(i) L ndisputcd l'rade rcceivables - considcrcd gond 9.13 9.73
(ii) L'ndisputcd Tradc l{cceivablcs - rvhich havc significanr increasc
in crerlit risk

(iii) Undisnutcd '['radc l{cccivablcs - crcdit rmpaired

(r') l)isputcd Trade Ilcceivablcs- considcrcd good

(v) l)isputcd 'Imdc llcceivablcs - u,hich have significant incrcasc in
clctlrt nslt

(vi) l)isputcd 'l trdc llcccivablcs - crcdit impaircd
Total 9.73 9.73

A of trade receivable for the ended 3l N{arch 2024

ll. Cash and cash equivalents
(.ash on hand

llalanccs rvith schcdulcd banks:
-ln (lurrent accountst
-llarrk deposits u,ith maruriry less than 3 months

1.15

5'71.25

ll( l(.).{.)(.r

5.64

21.99

1.986.(U
1,379.00 2,013.63

thc spcdfied poiecrs only.

12, Other bank balances

lhlances u.ith Schcdtrled Banks:

- llank dcposits having maturiw of more than 3 months but less than 12 months+ 6,282.26 1,299.36
6,292.26 1,299.36

pith$ts orthc sp..ifi.d prciecri only.

&C

<,

*
CHARTE R E D

ACCOUNIANTS

EL

o

*

^ including t 1092.1{) lahhs (31 Mttch 2(124: { Nil) trom contrac u,ith cusrorncrs urrder Ind AS 115 For Independenr flor:rs.
^ l)uc from relatcd partics { 77.8t1 lakhs (31 N{arch 2()24: { 4.74 lakhs). For tcrms and conditions relating to related pa6v receivablcs [refcr norc 33].

tr



DLF Properw Developers Limited
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Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gatewav Tower, R Block, DLF city, Phase III, Gurugram, rzzoo2.
Notes to the financial statements as at 31 March 2025

Particulars
As at 3l Mar,ch 2025

No of shares Amount

Amount in

As at 3l March2024

No of sbares Amount
13. Equity share capital
(A) Authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital and par value per share
Authorised capital
tgutn shares of Rs I t t each (l)rer.rous rear: Rs I I ) each) 5r,,t )t )r ) 5.rn r 5t t{I)t I 5.tttt

50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
[:.t1uin'shares of Rs ltteach fullv pard up (Previous r.ear: Rs lil g^.h; 5ll,(xxr 5.ttt t 5il,(xll) 5u)

50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00

Reconciliation of numbers of shares at the and at the end of the

5tl,{ }l tt I 5.u r 5o,0l n ) 5.(;1i

50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00

C) Rights/preferences/restrictions attached to equiN shares

The (-ompanv has onlv one class ofequin'shares havrng a pat r-alue ofRs ltt per share. E-ach holder ofequin shares is enutled to one vote per share.

amounts, if anr'. 'fhe distribution t'ilI be in proportron to the number of equin'shares held bv the shareholders.

Details of shareholders more than 504 shares in the

Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up
D[.F F]ome Dcvelopers Limited (ncluding nominees) 5( ),1 l( lt) l ul).(x l 5lr,o0o 1()().(l(r

2025Particulars As at 3l 20uAs at 31

No of

Shares held at the end of the

DLF I krme Developers Lrmited (includrng nr>minees) 5r),rxxr l{x) 5r),rr)r l 1ilo

the balance sheet date i.e. 31 Nlarch 2t125.

shareholdrng represents both legal and beneficial o*'nerships of shares.

(flti.t; gut ltas lrua inttntionol/1, /r1t hbnkl

\.,

*\\i

Lakhs)

Equiw shares at the begrnnrng o[the rear
Change during the rear
F-<1uiB' shares at the end ofthe vear

As at
No of shares

Particulars
ot'eNo of eharcs %

/-

i
\

As at 3l
No of shares

Name of promoters
o//o

at 31 Merch 2025
rhNo of shares

duri"g the year
31 M.nch 2025 3llfr/ralrch}U2y',



DLF Propertv Developers Limited
u70 100HR2006PLC106417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Bloctg DLF City, Phase III, Gurugram,122002.
Notes to the financial statements as at 31 M.arch 2025

Other equity
Retained earnings
Balance at thc begirrnirrg of the vear

.\dd : transter from statement of profit and loss

Balance at the end of the year

Other comprehensive income
Balance as per last balance sheet

.\ddition during the vear

Ilalance at the cnd of thc vcar

Equity Component of compulsorily convertible debentures
Balance as per last balance sheet

.\ddition during the vear

Balance at the end of the vear

Total

(Tltis space has been intentional!, left blank)

(24,645.06)

2,815.32

(24,627.36)

(17.70)
(21,799.74) (24,645.06\

92.80

6.36

89.04

3.16
99.16 92.80

25,170.00 25,170.00

25,170.00 25,170.00

3,469.42 617.74

C HARTER ID
ACCOUNTANl$

<(

*

o&C

EL

As at
31st March 2025

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at
31st March 2024

t4

Particulars

4

^



DLF Property Developers Limited
u70100H R2006PLC 1064 t7
Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gatervav Tower, R Block, DLF citv, Phase III, Gurugram, lzz0oz.
Notes to the financial statements as at 3l March 2025

15. Long term Provision
Pnx-ision for emplovee beneFrts

-(iratuin'"
-Cr>mpensated absences

2it.60

1.71

+1).50 5.49

2.35

l. l0
().07

30.31 ,10.50 7.84 t.t7
*Refer note 32

16. Borrowings
Unsecured

Loans from related parties*

lT.Trade payables

Due to micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 39)

Total outstanding dues o[ creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
-Due to Related Partl'

-Due to Others

of trade for the ended 3l March 2025

of trade for the ended 3l March 2024

l8.Other financial liabilities
Interest accrued and due on borrou-ings

Other liabilities

19.Other current liabilities
Statuton dues

Contract Liabihn -

Pavable fcrr cost to completion

C)ther t.iabilities

tt,101.(x) I,0tti.00
8,101.00 1,087.00

* This loan is payable on demand and hence classified under short term borrowing. The rate of interest of Companl.''s borrorvings is @8.75" n (Prer.ious yer. @
8.75",.) .

52.i3

3,536.49

r,2tr9.58

350.67

3,711.44

991.32

4,878.80 5,059.43

82.30

9.00

ln

in Lakhs

l1tt.5j
6.25

91.30 111.82

2 t'1.115

6,241.21

939.08

0.21

56.80

6,1r-4.14

15.++

6,216.38

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprlses

52.i3 52.73

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterpnscs and small enterprises

3,53-. l "t 135.86 16. l- 1,l3(r.90 1,826.07

Disputed due:

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

enterpnses

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and smail enterprises

Total 3,589.87 135.86 16.17 1,136.90 4,878.80

Total outstanding dues oImicro enterprises and small

enterpnses
350.67 3s0.67

T'otal outstanding dues o[creditors ()ther than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

989.2r 30.99 3,68t'|..t9 4,708.76

Disputed duel

Total outstanding dues o[micro enterprises and small

enterprises

Total outstanding dues oF creditors other rhan micro
enterprises and small enterpriscs

Total 1,339.94 30.99 3,688.,19 5,059.43

CHARTE ii E D

& o

**

*Refer note 35

7,457.58

F

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particularc As at
3l March Z)25

As at
31March2024

As at
3l Merch 2025

As at
3lMarch20Z{

't!

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payrnent
Particulars

Lese than
I yeer

l-2 years 2-3yeats More than 3 years

Totd

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total
[.ess than

I year
l-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 y-ears



DLF Property Developers Limited
u70100HR2006PLC106417

IUezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Torver, R Block, DLF City, Phase III, Gurugram,LzzOOZ.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3lMarch 2025

20. Revenue from operations
Operating revenue

Revenue tiom sale of food & beverages

Revenue from sale oI Iand, plots, Constructed Properties*

Arnount forfeited on cancellation of properties

Total (A)

Other operating revenue

Service receipts

Total (B)

Total (A+B)

"Reler note 35

21.. Other income
Interest from:

-Bank deposits

-Customer balances

-Income-tax refunds

-Unu,inding of amortised cost instruments
Other non-operating income

-Unclaimed balances and excess provisions written back

-Business support service

22. Cost of Material Consumed
-Cost of tb<>d and beverages and Consumables

-Cost of rnaintenance services

-Cost oiland, plots, constructed properties and other development activities

23. Employee benefit expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contriburion to provident and other funds

Gratuin' expense*

Sta f[ r.vel thre expense

*Rcfer note 32

2,1,85.91

10,860.54

7.81

1,7 60.29

13,054.32 '1,,760.29

44.42

44.42

13,054.32 1.,804.70

296.19

0.19

299

179.66

77.96

0.34

0.28

9.50

4.'.19

6.12

479.63 98.39

51 1.1 1

87.75

8,531.05

425.00

105.09

9,129.91 530.09

659.98

24,11

12.00

71.51

369.03

22.35

12.20

54.30

770.60 457.88

CHARTERED

(This :pace has been intentionallt left blank)

tr

in Lakhs
For the year ended

31. March 2025
For the year ended

3LMarch2024
Particulars



DLF Propertv Developers Limited
u70100H R2006PLC106417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gatewal' Tower, R Bloclq DLF Ciw, Phase [II, Gurugram, l2Z00Z.
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 3lMarch 2025

24. Finance costs
Interest on borrou'ings from relatcd parties

Interest on Debenrurcs
()ther Frnance cost

-ftnance and bank charges

25. Depreciation and amoftisation expense

Dcp rectation ( ) [ p rop ert\',plan t and ecluipmen t
. \mrlrtisation on Intangrble assets

26. Other expenses

Rent

Rates and taxes

Electricitl-, rvater and firel

Repair and mainrenance

-Buildrngs

-Others

Insurance

Commission and brokerage

Travelling and convevance

Printrng and stationen

.\dvertrsement and sales promotion
Communication costs

Legal and professional (includrng pavment to .\uditors refer note 25.l)
-Lmounts u'ritten off
Recruitment and tralning expenses

Clzum and compensation

Vehicles running and maintenance

Interest on CIST Pavment

Nliscellaneous e\pe"rrses

Note 26.1 - Pavment to auditors*
\udit fee

( )ther sen-ices

'lnclurJrng ()S'l'

(thit gace hat been intentiona/l1 /eft blank)

88.93

2.52

21.21

151..15

2.52

12.33

ttz.72 166.30

.+0.88 25.21

40.88 25.21,

256.85

11.51

61.59

10.27

11.24

5.68

331.38

3.56

19.15

67.70

2.95

136.5+

62.11

2.71

35.78

184.04

18.49

60.39

7.40

84.1 6

5.3.1

16.19

4.25

9.58

229.55

2.31

65.82

3.83

49.60

0.30

1,052.02 741.30

2.36

0.16

2.36

1.15

2.52 3.51

(
C HART T

ACCOUNT

al

*

ELu
/7

Particulars For the year ended
3l March 2025

(Amorrnt in Lakhs)

For the year ended
}lM,arch20?/l

n



DLF Propern' Developers Limited
u70100H R2006PLC106417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gatewav Tower, R Bloclq DLF Cin', Phase III, Gurugram, 122002.
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 3ll4arch2025

in Lakhs

27.Tax expense
(-urrent 'l'as (includrng earlier vcars)

l)efcrred tax

Income tax expense reported in the state ment of profit and loss

Accounting loss before income tax
IND AS adiustments u'hich rvill never bc allorved

Disallorvance as per Income Tax -\ct
-\llou'ance as per Income'['ax -'\ct

Total Income

.\t countn''s staruto4' inc<lme ta-\ ratc <lf 25.17o o

(31 \larch 2021:25.110 o)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in
calculating taxable income:
'['ax impact o[ utilisatron o[ brought f<rnr-ard tax krsses and delrreciarron
'['ax impact of unrecogmised deferred tar ()n unabsorbed losses
'fax expense earlier r-ear

Current Income tax expense

Deferred Tax #
Deferred'I'ax as per last vear hnancial statements

Deferred I'ar recomputed

Deferred tax expense

28. Earning per equity share

Net profit attributable to equitv shareholders
Net Profit/(Loss) f<rr the vear/ previous vear attnbutable ro equin' shareholders
'l'otal numbcr of equin shares <>utstanding at rhe begrnning o[ the vear

Potential equitv shares in compulsorilv conrertible debcnrurcs
'fotal number of equin' shares ()utstanding at the end oI thc r.car/previr.rus vear

\\'eighted a\-erage <l[ equifi, shares outstandrng frrr DL.-PS

Nominal value o[e<1uin'sharc (Rs)

Basrc carnirlss per share oI Rs. 10/- cach

l)rlutcd carnings pcr share of Rs. 10/- errch

(Thi qa,u ha.s been intantional!' bft blank)

&Co

(, CHART E !1[
ACCOUI{TA|\T

(117 s0)

(417.s0)

l'l-re maior c()mponents o[ income tar e\perise and the reconciliation <lf cspected tax expcnse based on the domesuc
effective ta\ rate of the (.ompanl at 25. 1 70 o and the rc?()rted ta-\ espense in profit or loss are as follorvs:

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied br tax rate

2,427.83

0.32

112.31

(363.08)

2,177.41

5+8.01

(s48.01)

(17.70\

9.50

37.11

(138.78)

(10e.s7)

(27.s8)

27.58

417.50

417.50

the deducuble temporan' differences, carned Fonvard ta\ l()sses can be utilised. Based upt-rn margirn frr>m sale of esisting proiccts, profit from launcl'r
of net' prolects in near furure and planned reduction in interest cost and or-edreads, rhe Companv believes that there is reasr.rnable certainin' tl,at
dcffered tax assets t'ill be recovered.

2,845.32

50,000.00

251,700,000

251,750,000

251,750,000

10.00

1.13

l.l3

(17.10)

50,000.00

251,700,000

251,750,000

251,750,000

10.00

(0.01)

(0.01)

Llt^t
F*

Particulars For dre year ended
SlMlarch2A25

(.\t
I

,l



DLF Properw Developers Limited
u70100H R2006PLC 106417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateu'av Toq'er, R Block, DLF ciw, Phase III, Gurugralor., 122002.
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025

29 Financial risk management

D Fair values hierarchy
['inancial asscts and Frnancial habilities are measured at fair va]uc in the financial statements and are grouped into rhree l,etels of a fair value hierarchy
'l'he rhrcc Lelels are dcfined based on rhe obsen'abih$ of srgnificant inputs to the measurcment, as f<rllou.s:

Level 1: cluoted prices (unadjusted) in actite markers ior financial instrumenrs.
l,evel 2: inputs other than quoted prices included t'ithin l.cvel I that are obsen'able [or rhe asser or [abihn, either directlv or indirectlg
level 3: unobsen'able inputs fr-rr rhe asser or liabrlin'.

ii) Financial instruments measured at fair r-alue-recurnng fair value measurements- Nil

iii) Financial instruments measured at amortised cost

ln

iv) Financial instruments bv categon.'

For am<>rtised cost raluc thc best cstrmare of fair r-alue. ln

Financial liabilities
Borrorvings

Interest accrued but not due on
borro',vings

Trade pavables

()ther financial liabiliues

il,10l.(x)

it2.30

-t,t{78.tt()

9.(X )

1.087.(XI

r 38.57

5,059.,+3

(r.25

Total 13,071.10 6,291.25

v) Riek maaagrment

of thc Companrt risk management framen'o*" This note explains the sources of risk Nhich rhe €nrih is e\posed ro md ho$ thc entiry mamges the risk and the related
impact in the financial sratements.

A) C..dit rirk
Credit risk is the risk that countepanl fails to discharge its obligarion m the Cnmpany. The Comprnyt esposure to crertt risk is innu€nced main\.by cash and cash

incoqD.ates rhis informrrion iflro its credit risk conrrols.

.) CrEdit rilk m.o.g.mc
i) CRdn risk mdng

A: lrllr credir d\k
B: Nloderate credit risk

CHANTERiD
ACC0UI,ITANT$

I.er-el 3

Ig-el3
lrr el 3

l,er-el 3

1,17(t.96

879.19

1,379.(n)

(t,282.26

1,1'76.96

879.49

1.379.00

6,282.26

9.13

757.6t1

2,013.63

1,299.3(t

9.13

157.68

2,0'13.63

1,299.36

9,717.71 9,717.71 4,080.40 4,080.40

Level 3

Level 3

Ler.el 3

Level 3

8,101.00

82.30

4,ti78.80

9.00

8,101.00

82.30

4.878.80

9.00

1,0u7.00

138.57

5,059.43

6.25

1,087.(X)

13ti.57

5,059.43

6.25

Financial assets
'I'rade receir.ables

()ther Frnancial assets

Cash and cash equi'r'alents
()ther bank balances

Total
Financial liabilities
Borrorvings (\ion-current)
Borrorvings (Current) (including Inreresr accrued)

Trade payables

Orher financial habihties

Total 13,071.10 13,071.10 6,291.25 6,291.25

Financial assets
'I'rade receir-ables

Other financial assets

Cash and cirsh e<1uir-alents

Other bank balance

1,116.96

879.19

1,379.(Xl

6,282.2(t

9.73

751.(ttl

2,013.63

1,299.3(,
Total 9,717.71 4,080.40

(.: t Iigh crcdit risk

*

FL

*

t

Particulars kvel 3l March Z)25 3lMarch2024
Amortised cost FairValue Amortised cost Fair Value

Particulars 3l March 2025 3l}.{atch20?A
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortised

r-



DLF Property Developers Limited
u 70 I 00H R200 6P LCt064l7
Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gate*'av Tower, R Block, DLF City, Phase III, Gurugram, L2ZWZ.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2025

'r'he frrr credrt loss bascd on the

[..)[ credrt rrsk 12 month expected

credrt krssz' Llfe trme

expected credrt loss

l\loderate creclrt nsk Lr:ans and other financral
.1SSC tS

1l month expected
credrt l,rss

[ [r.qh credrt rrsk Loans, other financral assets

and trade recerables
12 month erpected
credrt loss/ I-rfe trme

expected credrt loss

ln

Cash & cash eouivalents and bank deoosits

banks across the countn'.

Trade receivables

become past due.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

u) Concentrationoftradereceivables

b) Credit risk exposune

Provision for expected credit losses

The Companr prrx'rdes firr espected credrt loss based ,rn hfetrme espected credrt loss mechanrsm for loans and advances, deposrts and other rnvestments

As at 31 IVIarch 2025 !n

As at 31 lUarch 2024 tn

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

()n hlstorlcal tnftrrmatton ?rb()ut cust()mer default rates, management c()nsrdcr the credrt quaLn'rlf trade rccerr-ables that ere n,rt p".i,lr" r, be grxrd.

dlsckrsed abrx'e are the (.rlmpa.ntrs marilmum possrble credrt nsk c\p()sure rn relatron these rleposrts.

mantgernentc,rnsralersthequaLn,rf suchlssetsthatrrrenorprstduer,rbegrrocl.

I;ru' Cash and cash equrvalents

other bank balances, loans,
trade recel-able and other
financral assets.

9,i|i.i1 +,r )8r r.+l I

recel-ables 1li.60 9.;3

-l 
rade recerrables

(lash and cash equn';rlents
()ther bank balances

()ther financral assets

I ll.6(l
1,3r9 ll{ l

6,282.26

r,93tt 85 irll

I176
I il() rll )

6,282.2(t

I,93it.n5

(-ash and cash eclurtalents
( )tlrer bank bnlances
-l 

mde recen:rbles
( )ther t-rn:tncurl :rsscts

2,1tl3.(t3

1,299.16

9.1'l

t-5'i.(:8

( l',,
IT",

It",
(t",,

3,r )1:i.63

1,399.i(r

).1i
;5;.6n

A.sset gloup

I 

Basis of catcSorisation Provision br expcnses
crcdit l,oss

lCash and cash

| "qur"alentr,.rther 
benk

lbrlun."., loans , secu.n'

l.l.p,rr,,., trade .ecer, ables

land,-,ther financral assets.

I

Credit retirs Particularr 31 March 20fi 3lMarch?-tr24

Particulars 31 Merch 2025 SlMrrch?J0,24

Particularo Ecdaaad grocs
c.rryhg anorrt et

defruft

Expectcd probability
of

dehuk

Expected credit
bsses

C.rryiry ilnount net
of impairment

provision

/rHQr
'.c/cnRnrERED\ai

tlccouruTANTs/

'. # tr

Particulars Estimated gocs
cetryiag emount et

defauft

Expectcd probebility
of

default

Erpeced credit
lorses

Carryiag amourt Del

of impairmcnt
provisi,oa



DLF Property Developers Limited
u70r00H R2006PLC106417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gaten'ay Tower, R Block, DLF City, Phase III, Gurugram, 122002.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

A) Liquidity risk

acc()unt thc hclurdrn- of the market rn rvhrch the entrn' operates.

Maturities of fi nancial liabilities
The tables below' the

(Amount in Lakhs)
based on their contractual maturities:fi nancial liabilities into relevant

Non-derivatives
Borrou rngs rncludrng lntc(est accured
-[ 

rade palable

Other frnencral LabrLtres

8,183.3t t

-1,878.8tr

9.{I}

fi,Itt3 3(I

+,878.8(r

9.r)( )

Total 13,071.10 13,071.10

in Lakhs

B) Market Risk

a) Interest rate risk
i) Liabilities

The companrrs fixed rate borrourngs are carned at amortrsed cost. Ther are therefore not sublect to lnterest rate osk as defined rn lod AS lll7, srnce nerther the carryrng
amount nor the filture cash flou's u'rll fluctuate because of a change rn market rnterest rates.

ii) Assets
The companis fxed deposrts are carned at f\ed rate. Therefore not sublect to rnterest rate nsk as de6ned rn Ind AS lt)7, srnce nerther the carn'lng arnount nor the hrture
cash florvs wrll flucruate because ofa change rn market rflterest rates.

30 Capital management
- Safeguatd therr abrln'to c()nttnue as a gorng concern, and
- Nlarntarn an optrmal caprtal stmcture to reduce the cost of caprtal

The Oompanl m()nrt()rs caprtal on the basrs of the carn'rng amount of equrn'less cash and cash equrralents as presented on the face of balance sheet.

ln

N

Non-derivatives
Borro*'rngri rncludrng rnrerest accured

Trade palzble
( )ther frnancral Labrlrtres

r,225 51

5,t))9.+3
(t.2t

1,2%.5,-

5,o59 +i
6.25

Total 6,291.25 6,291.2s

8,lol.(x)
1,379.( x I

l,r r8J.( n )

2,r rl -1.6 
j

6,722.00 (926.6i\

Total bornrwings
l.ess : cash and cash equl'alent upto the extent ofdebt above

Net debts

Total equrq' 3,+--r.-+l ()-_ +

Net debt t() equlr\- rntr(l 1.93 (1.49)

C H ART ERED

ACCOUNTANTS

As at 3l March 2025 I*ss than I year l-3 vear More than 3 years Total

As at 31 March 2021 Lcgs thea 1rrc-ar l-3 year More than 3 vears Totat

Particulars 3l March 2025 3lMarchN?A

k



DLF Properw Developers Limited
u70100H R2006PLC106417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gatewav Tou'er, R Block, DLF Ciq', Phase III, Gurugrarla, 122002.

Notes to the financial statements as at 3l March 2025

(Amount in Lakhs)

3l The (lomp,nr his mumulared loss mounting to Rs. 21,799.74 Lakhs (PBioLis lee Rs 2d645.06 Lakhs). During preceeding rears, fie Pa,trr Comp,nl- has

inaused Rs 25,170 lakhs ir form of C(lDs rnd has also assured ns conrinued finrncid suppon to rhe Compan$ itself and rhrcugh the Immediate parenr
company, as rnd shen nedcd, so as to ennble the Compan) to continue its .,perations is I going concem in foresee.ble fururc. .\ccordingly, the financial
staremcnrs have becn prepared on a going concem basis.

32 Employee b.rcfit obliA.tioos
G".tuity (Non Fundcd)
The (hmpant has a defined benefir g.aruiq plan, shich is untunded. ]'he Companv provides fot gratuiq for empk'yees in India as per the Palimenr of
Gratuirv .\ct, 1972. Emplolees $ho are in consnuous sen ice for a period of 5 rer are efuible for grafui$. lhe amount of gratui$ pa)nble on
renremcnt/tcrmination is the empklees last dra*n basic salan pet monrh computed popottiomtelv frrr 15 days salan multipted aor the number of vears of
*n ice. The r eight-arerage duration o f the defined benefir obliganr)n is 7.0.1 rears (31 \larch a)21 : I 8.63 .vears)

(i) Risk associated with plan provisions
The Companv is exposed to number of risks in the defined benefits plans: Nlost significant risks pertaining to defined benefits plans and management's

esumation o[ the impact if these nsks are as follorvs:

. Salar Increases-Acrual salary increases s.ill increase the Plan's habilin. lncrease in salan'increase rate assumption in fiture raluations rvill also increase rhe

liabiliq'.
. Inr-estmenr Rrsk-If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual inr-estment return ()n assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last

valuation date can impact the liabiliry'.
. Discounr Rate- Reduction in discount rate in subsequent r-aluations can increase the plan's habilin.
. Ilortaliw & disabiliry -Actual deaths & disabihw cases pro\-ing lou,'er or higher rhan assumed in the valuation can impact the liabiliries.
. Withdra-ur,als - ,\ctual rvithdrarvals pror,ing hrgher or lorver than assumed withdrarvals and change o[rvithdrarval rares at subsequent valuations can impact

Plan's Iiabiliry.

(ii) The followings tables summaries the components of net benefits expenses recognised in the statement of profit & loss:

(a) Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

unt in Lakhs

(b) Movement in the liabilirl- recognised in the balance sheet is as under:
Amount in Lakhs

(c) Breakup of Actuarial gain/ loss: Other comprehensive income:
Amount in Lakhs)

(d) For the determination of the liabilin in respect of gratuitl, the companv has used the follorving actuarial assumptions:

in Lakhs

N

31 March Z)25 3ll&.[arch20?AParticulars
9.()+Current Sen'ice Cost t3. ti( )

3.16Intcrcst Cosr 3.2{)

12.2012.00
Amount recognised in the statement of Profit
& loss

3l March 2025 3lMarch20?A)escription

+ r.59 38.96I)resent value oi defined benefit obligation as at the start of rhe vear

il.8() 9.()+(-urrcnt scn icc cost
3.2t ) 3.16Inrcrest c()st

(6.i6) (3.76)\cruarial loss/(galn) recognized during rhc vear
(1.76)[:ffect oi empkrvee rranster 3.22

Renetits prid (r 6.38) (+.0+)

41.59

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the

vear 34.08

31 March 2025 31March2024Description

\ctuarial loss arising fnrm change in financial assumpuon 3.63 l.+tr

I'l[[cct of Chanse in l)emograpl.ric .\ssumptions (4.6s) (0.()-r)

\ctuarial glin arising from expcricncc adjustment ( )..).)) (5.2r)

Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss (6.36) (3.76)

Particular 31 March 2025 3lMarch?J0.24
Financial Assumptions

[)rscountin.g Rltc 6.11" u 7.()9",,

7.(x)",, 7.()t I' ,,

Demographics Assumptions
Rctircrncnt .\gr" ft'cars) 60 /62/65 /68170 58/60/62/65/6t\

\lort:rlin ratcs inclusile oi prolisitxr ior disirbilirr
l{)O('u oI I.\l ,\l

(20t2 - l-1)

10o",, oi I.\l.NI (2()12-

l+)

Withdrarr,al \{'ithdras-al\ttrition.lt \.gus
Rate (%) Rate (%)

L'p ro 3O Yerrs +'

['rorn il to -[-{ r'e:rrs 1,19" ,,

-)r,

liufurr sal;rn lncrcirsc

\boi c JJ vcrtrs



DLF Propern- Developers Limited
u70100H R2006PLC106417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gatewav Tower, R Block, DLF city, phase III, Gurugram,122002.
Notes to the financial statements as at 31 March 2025

(Amount in Lakhs)

These assumPtions \!ere developed bv management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount [actors are determined close to each vear-
end bv reference t() gol-ernment bonds o[ reletant economrc markets and that har-e terms to maturin- approximating to the rerms o[ the related obligauon.
Other assumptions are based r,n management's historical experience.

(e) SensitiviN analvsis for compensated absences liabiliw:
in Lakhs)

4
b)

^)
b)

Sensitivities due to mortalin & rvithdrarvals are not material & hence impact of change due to these not calculated.
Sensitir-iues as rate o[increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before rerirement & life expectanc\,are nor applicable.

(f) Maturi4 profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

unt in Lakhs

(lltu gace lta.s been intentionalfi left blank)

Impact of the change in discount rate

Prcscnt value oI at the end of thc 34.08 41.59

due to increase of 0.50 " oI ().ft0) (2.rr+)

Impact due t<l decrease o[ 0.5[) ", o 8-1 3.r2
Impact of the change in salan increase

Prcsent value of obhgation at tlle end clI the vear 34.08 41.59
Impact due to increasc clf 0.5() " o 0.91 3.16
Impact due to decrcase o[ 0.5() " u ( ).88) (2.8e)

0 to 1 \'ear 5.66 l.l-1
I to 2 \'ear 5.00 t.2o
2 to 3 \'ear +.11 1.25

3 to 4 \'ear +. i6 r.38
4 to 5 \'ear -1.r)6 l.+9
5 to (r Year 3.57 1.55

6 \'ear onu,-ards 21.95 130.24

\

Particplar 31 March 2025 3l March 2024

Description 31March 2025 3l March 202

0
n



DLF Properrr- Developers Limited
u70100HR2006PLC106417
Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Bloclq DLF city, phase III, Gurugram, lz200z.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Amount in Lakhs)

33 Related party disclosures:

ln accordancc $'ith Ind .\S-2'1 "Related Parn- Disclosures" oi the Companies (.\ccounts) Rules 2()14, the namcs .[ related parties along
rvirh aggregate am()unt of transactions and vear end balances rvith them are gir-en as Follorvs:

a) Name and Relationship:

(i) Ultimate Parent comPanv Raidhani Investments and Agencies private Limited

(ii) Immediate parent company DLF Limited

(iii) Parent company DLF Home Developers Limited

(ir) 
-f 
oint \-entures of holding companies at anr, time dunng the vear (rvith rvhom there rvere transacrions dunng the vear):

Joint ventures of parent company at any time during the year
DI-F Emporio Limited
DLF Pos'er & Sen-ices Limited
DLtj (,vber Cin Devekrpers Limrted
DLF Urban Private Limited 0\' rill Nlarch 25,2{J25)
DLF cin-- Centre Limired (Nlerged rvith DLF cyber Cin De'elopers Limired)
DI-F Promenade l,imited

(r') Fellorv Subsidiary o[ tlre companies at any time dunng the vear (with r.vhom rhere q,ere transactions dunng the vear)
Sr. No Name of Fellow Subsidiaries

1 Lodhi Properfi Companv Umited
2 Riveria Commercial Der-elopers Limired
3 Dl.F Homes Sen'ices Private t.imited (Nlerged with DLF Clubs & Hospitalirl I-imited)
4 DLF Wellco Private Limited (formedl'Ethan Estates Developers Privare Limited)
5 DLF Golf Resorts Limited (Nterged with DLF Clubs & Hospitaliw Limited)
6 DLF Recreational Foundation fr\{erged with DLF Clubs & Hospitaltn Limited)
7 DLF Southern Torvns Prir-ate Limited

(vi) Enteryrises under the control of Key managerial pe rsonnel (KMP) of ultimate holding company or their relatives at any
time during the vear (with whom there were transactions during the year/previous year):

1 N{s. .{nushka Singh

2 NIs. Satitri Der-iSingh
.l Hitech Propefi, Developers Pnr-are Limired
4 Plaza. Partners

5 Pushpak Builders and Der-elopers Pnr-are Limited
6 Rcnkon Partners

7 Pure [{ome & l,iling Private Limited (formerlv DLF Brands Private l,imited)

Transactions the

CHARIERTD
OUNTANTS

Sr. No
1

2

3

4

5

6

&C tJ

u

Transactions the t'ear 31 March 2025 3lMarch 2024 3l March 2025 3l March 2024
Intcrest csPcnsc r,n Lrrn tio.62 151.+5

2.52 2.52
Rent ().9-l

Salcs o.l2
Lt,:rns tirkcrr -t97.r n I 5Jl I ll( I

],oans rctundcd + 15.(x ) tt57.rx r

Balance at the end of the 31 NIarch 2025 31March 2024 31lVlarch 2025 3lMarch2024
5.tx t 5.( )t )

Llnsccurcd kran 1.169.(x) l,0i37.l)( )

lnterest accrucd arrd duc on loan 12.56 I 18.-;7
Interc:st accrucd and duc ()n debcnturcs 2.21
'l'rade receir':tblcs o. l2
I]:rlancc oi ( .( .1)s 25,17tt.ott 25, I 7( ).(n )

\mount lc {).2+

# .11/ tran.,;a;tion are nrt of la:te;.

trt

*

Immediate parent company
(DI-F LtO

4

ft

Description Parent comprny
@LF Home Dcvetropers Lrd)

lnrercst c\pensc on dcbenturc

Iear
Sl-rarc capital



DLF Propertv Developers Limited
u7 0 100 H R2 00 6P LC t0 6 417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF City, phase III, Gurugram, 122002.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3lMarch2025

in Lakhs

Transactions the 3lMarch2025 3lMatch2024
Rental
I)t .li tl Limited 169.83 t53.99

l.imitedI)I,F C 'bcrcin
38.46 22.71

I)LF Cin Ccntrc l.imited u'ith DLF Cvber Cin Der' rs 38.4-l 2.+ I

I)I,F I-imrted 44.70 50.80
LinritedDI.tr (. 'bercin'Der

+.78
l)l.lr (_i tith l)1.Ii(-vbcr (](lentre Limitcd 3.10
Electrical Services

I-imitedDI-F 0.6'l
LimitedDI-F C bercin Dere 0.06 1.08

Maintenance
I)I,F I1 Limited 14.93 12.+8
DL['(-r,bercin ers Limitcd 5.95 1.63
i)LF Cin (-entrc Limitcd (\lerged s'ith I)LF (.]-ber (-iq. Der-elopers Limited) 9.20 8.83
Water charges

[)l.l' l:.mporio l-imitcd 1.47
[)I-F (]rbcrcin Devclopcrs Limited 0.66 6.01
Dt.F (lin'(icntre Limited (\lerged w'ith DI-F (.vber Cin-Der-elopers l,imited) 0.02 3.51
Rate & Taxes
[)l,l' ['.mporio Limited 1.83 7.48
DI-l; (-r bcrcin l)elekrpers Lirnited 0.36 0.23
DLF (]i (-entrc l.imited (Nlerged u.itlr pLF Cvber Cin Der-elopers Limited) 0.38 l.-+0
Parking chalges
DLIr Ilmporio Limited 3.21

DLIi (-vbercin l)evclopcrs Limrtcd 0.26
Interest expenses on loan
DLF-Southern Tou'ns Pvt. Ltd. 8.31

Cost of Maintenance (PNG Charges)
DI-li (.vbercitr l)er elopcrrs l.imited 0.8-+

Cost of Maintenance (AHU Charges)
DLli (.vbercin' Devel<pers Limitcd 0.93
Sales (F&B)
[)l.li Irmporio Limitcd +1.25 38.r8
DLI; (lvbercin Der-elopers Limited 109.47 19.20
l)l.lj L'rbnn l)rivatc Limited 2.-++

Dl,[j Promenade l,td 0.+6
DI-[i Po*'er & Sen-ices L,imited 1.87 5.+6
Service Charges on Sales (F&B)
DLti l)rxver & Sen'ices Lrmitcd 0.02 0.12
DLF [lmporio l.imited 3.82 3.66

bercil)l.tr (. tl l)evekrpers Limited +.28 1.65
Business s lncome
I)I,ti F] r Limited 0.29
I)LF Llrban l)rilate Limited 2.66
DLF (-vbcrcin Der Lrmitcd 0.05
DLIi l)romcnadc I.td 0.16

-Others
[)l.li (.r l>crcitr l)cr elr l.irnircd 2.13

and fessional
I)t.t, I rrio Limited 0.53
S

DL[; (-itr (.cnrrc Llnired [)cr Lrrnitl,1t t.t) ("[. ('bcr
53.0.+

& Atr
(.\

ACCOUNTAN i*
E

Description
Joint veotures of parent company at any

trme the year

Electricit-v expenses

CHARTERED



DLF Property Developers Limited
u70 100 H R2 006P LCt0 6 417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gatewav Tower, R Block, DLF ciry, Phase III, Gurugram, 122002.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3lMarch2025

*exclusire of applicable tax

CHARTERED 1

ACCOUNIANTSI*

EL

in Lakhs

/*

A

Laundry services

l.odhi Propern (-ompanv Limited 3+.61 13.61
Purchase of Raw Material
Riveria (-ommcrcial Dcvclopers l.imrrecl 53.70 23.69
Staff Welfare-Others
llir eria (.ommcrcial [)cvclopers Limitcd 16.90
l)i,I.'(i<llfIlcstlrts],iIItlspitalinI,inrlted) 0.62

and Professional
Dl.Ir (llubs & I{ospitaltn L.imited (fiotmedv DLF Recreatit.rnal lroundation l,imitcd) 99.66
DI-F t Iomes Sen'ices Prir-ate l,imited (Nlerged l'ith DLF (-lubs & llospitalin Limited) 13.26

Sales (F&B)
Rireria (iommercial l)er-elopers Limited 2.04
DLF \\'ellco Prir-ate t;-it"a (nr.*".ty r-clopers Prir-are t,imited) 0.64 0.09
Service Charges on Sales (F&B)
I)1,[i \\'cllco l)rir-ate l.imited (f<rrmcrh' [ithan F.states Dcvelopers Prir-ate l-irnited) 0.01

Bus. promotion - Others
DL[] Clubs & Hospitalin'Limited (Formetlv DLF Recreational [.'oundation Limited) 14.02

l,odhi Propern (-rlmpanv l,imited 0.1'1

Recruitment & Training - Traning
l)LI;(-lubs & ilospitahn Limitcd ([;ormerh [)l.i' Rccrcarional [;oundatitxr Limrtcd) 0.20
l,odhi Propcrt]' (.ompanJ Liqitcd 0.17
Borrowings
DLF Southern'I'ou ns Prilate Limited 6,932.00
Interest expense

lnterest e\pense on loan 8.31

Reimbursement of E"pg4ggq
Dl,[i CIubs & I lospitalin' I-imited (Formerl]' DLF Recreational Foundation Limited) 6..15

Business support income
[)Lfi I Iomes Sen-ices Private I.imited ClggSd u'ith DLF (llubs & [lospitalin'I-imited) 1.06
DI-Fi (llubs & I Iospitaliqr Limited (Formerlv DLF Rectcational Foundation Limited) 7.13

Description Fellow subsidiary companies
Transactions the 3lMarch20?5 SlMar.ch?fi?A



DLF Property Developers Limited
u70100HR2006PLC 106417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF City, phase [II, Gurugram, 122002.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2025

in Lakhs

Trade receivables
I)I ,Ii Limitcd 0.65 0.36
DLli Pos'er & Sen-iccs l.imired 0.33 1.87
T)I,II (] Limited 76.23 2.51

'rade

I)I,t,' I.rmitcd 0.61 18.33
I)LII (] Limited 13.88 0.07

(.entre Limited rvith DLF CI)I,F 0.22
Advance to vendor
Dt_tr Centre Limited rvith DLF C ber 15.20
Interest payable on loans
DLfi Soutl,ern'l'o*'ns Pr-t. Ltd. 7.48
Security deposits
Dl-F l,imporio l.imited 109.31 109.31
DL[.'C Limited 12.37 12.37
DI-F'Ci (-entre Limited u'ith DLli 53.0'+ 53.0,1

1.28
Qer-elopers Limited 1.11 2.69

0.37
Loans
l)[,F Southern Tou'ns Pvt. Ltd. 6,932.00
Interest Payable

Interest accrued and due on loan 7.18
Advance recoverable in cash

DLF Clubs & Limited 6.+5

DL[i Homes Sen'ices Prir-ate Limited Q[qrged t'ith Dl.F Clubs & ] lospitahn' Limited) 0.63
DI-F Clubs & Hospitalin Limited 0.67

during the vear*
Cost of Land and Plots

639.86
ritn DeviSingh 68.31

.Srngh 68.37
l)laza I)artners 697.03
I)trshpirk Builders and l)ctclopers l)rilatc Lirnired 138.91
Itenkon Partncrs 8+2.06

Transaction during the year*
Sales

l)urc Iftrnrc & Lir l)rir ate Limircd I)l .[i Brands l)rir ate 0.06 0.01
on SalesService

Purcllorne&l.ir Privatc Limitcd [)1.[' Brands l)rivare 0.01 0.00

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANIS

({
**

o&c

EL

A

Description
Joint ventures of holding compary

time during the vear
at any

Balance at the end of the 3l March 2025 3lMarch2024

Sl March Z)25 3lMarch20?A

l)ropertr' (-onrpanr' l,rd

Description KMP of Parert oompaoy or relatives
5lM:arch?.O?5 3lM'rrcn'2024

l'roperfl' [)e'r'elopers l)nvate Lirnitcd

Description Enterprises under the control of Key
maaagerial personnel (EVIP) of ultimate

holding conpany or their relatives

Sl March 2025 3ll0ilarch?ff21



DLF Property Developers Limited
u7 0 100 H R2 0 0 6PLC1:0 6 4t?
Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF City, Phase III, Gurugram, 122002.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

*exclaiue of Epbcable tax.

{, CHARTE R i: D

ACC0UNIAI,iiS*

L

*/

fr

Trade

111.16 221.01

971.33 7+1.87
I)laza ])artners

611 .71 966.69
Builders and Prilatc Limited 219.99 n8.13

Rcnkon Partners
1,.152.01 1,350.37

I)cli
111.7 6 221.07

25.00 25.00
Privatc I.imitcd

.\nr,rshka

I Iitcch 100.00 100.00
Plaza Partners 100.00 100.00

Ruilders and Private Limited 50.00 50.00
Renkon Partners 200.00 200.00
Saritri I)er-i 25.00 25.00

KMP of Parent or relatives

\

Balance at the end of the year 3l March Z)25 3lMarch20?A

Private l.irniredI litcclr
. \nusl.rka



DLF Property Developers Limited
u70100HR2006PLC106417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tou'er, R Bloclq DLF City, Phase III, Gurugrurnr122002.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Sltr/.archZDZS

(Amount in lakhs)

34 The (lode on Social Security, 2020 Ccode) relatiog to emplolee benefits during employment and post emplovmmt benefits received Presidential assent
in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date txr which the Code will come iato effect has not been
notified and the 6nal rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. 'Ihe Companr will assess the impact of the Code whm it comes into effect and will
record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

35 IND AS 115 disclosures:

of revenue (Amount in lakhs

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are €ienerallv on terms of 30 to 90 davs.

Contract asses are initially recognised for revenue eamed on account of cofltracts where rer.enue is recognised over the p€riod of time as receipr of
consideration is cooditiooal on successfirl completion ofpedormance obligatiofls as per contract. C)nce the perfomaflce obligatiotr is fu.lfilled and
milest<mes for invoicing are achieved, contract assets are classiEed to trade r€ceivables.

Contract liabi]ities include amount received from customers as per the insutlments stipulated in the buyer agreemmt to deliver properties once the
propenies are completed and coatrol is transferred m customers.

Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from:

in lakhs

$ Includes { ).677.24 lakb ( il hlarcb 2024 { ittil lakb ) ruognixd nat 0f opeilingnnrract liabilig,.

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss s'ith the contracted price:

Revenue reco€pition at a point of time 13,054.32 1,804.70

Revenue recognition over period of time

1,17 6.96

13,054.32Total revenue from contracts with customers

Trade receivables from contracts under Ind AS
115 $jet of Credit Impaired)

1,804.70

9.73

Contract t,iabilities 6,241,.24 6,17 4.14

.\mounts included in contract liabilities at the

beginning of the vear
6.17-+. 1-t 604.21

Amount received/Adjusted against contract
liabilin' during the vear

9,835.5.r 5,569.93

Performance obligations satisfied in current vear $ 9,168.11

Amounts included in contract liabilities at the
end of the year (A+B-C) 6,241.24 6,174.14

Rer.enue as per Contracted price 13,054.32 1,804.70

Adiustments

Signi ficant f,rnancing componen t
()ther adiustments (rebate etc.) 21.06

Total 13,075.38 --..% 1,904.70

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS

in lakhs

t

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended
3l Marcb2024

Contract Balances As at 31M,arch2025 As at 31March10?A

Movement of contract liability As at 31March2025 As at 31M.ttch2024

Paaicrrlars As at Sl March 2025 As at 31}/;arch?0ll



DLF Property DeveloPers Limited

u70100HR2006PLC106417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF City, Phase III' Gurugram'122002'

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31March2025

(Aanount ia lakhs)

Performance obligation
irrro.-.Uor, .to..i trre Companyis performancc obligations for mtterial contracte e'e eummarised belov:

The performance obliga,l"" "r 
,rrt c"-pr'"y i" ."". "i 

a"a. 
"r 

g""a. i" sausfied once the control is transferred to the custome. and the customel pays

l"{JH:X'J::X;[:tion of the company in case of sale of residqrtiar plos and apartrnents and commercial office space is satisfied once the proiect

is completed and cootrot i, *n.r....a #,il.'.r".a#r.irr. *",.,,,tt til"t the plyment for contracted pnce as per the installment stipulated in the

Buyer's Agreement

36 Leases

tax Act, 1961

Revenue f.om Co-development proiects

co-development proiects where the Group is acting as contractor, rwenue is-recognised in accordance with the terms ofthe codeveloper agteements'

under such contracts, assets 
"r."t"a 

ao"l n", n"r'. 
", 

alternatrve use 
"nd 

Gro,f has an enforceable right o payment The esti'lr'ted project cost

includes construcuoo 
"oat, 

d".,"lop-"rrt-J .a*,*"ai- material, intemal d".,iop-.nt .ost, e*t rnJd.,elopment charges, borrowing cost and

overheads of such PtojecL

The estimates of the saleable area a.d costs are revieved periodically and effect of any chaoges in such estimates. is, recognized in the pedod such

changes are determifled. Ho*e.,er, vhen ihe arf fro;.", "or, 
i" 

"rtimat 
d to excted totat"tuen"-es f'om the p'oject' the loss is tecognized immediately'

,[he traflsactron price of rhe remaifling performance obligations (unsatisEed or panially unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2025 is 12'lo5'371^ls (31 March

ioro Jiiq,aut !, hkhs). Th. sa-. is tipetted to be recognised within 1 to 3 years'

37

The compaoy has short Term temaining lease contfact of less thao 12 mooths Mth ifltroduction of lnd As 116 w e f 01 04 2019 therc will be no change

io the acco,ntiog policy 
"ra 

ri*o"ia, "r.Li-y ", 
ii -iu "*it 

,t 
" 

roognition exemptioo providerl in Para 6 of Ind As 116 "Leases" The agyegate

Iease rental made for tt 
" 

y"", ,".ogrU"a ii-t'iJ.oj,** ofp-4, 
"nd 

los6-for Rs. 253.i5 lakh (Previous year l\' 182 25 lakh)'

No provision for tax on profits for the year has been made io the finaocial stetements as there is no taxable income undet the provisioos of the Incorne -

11.3911.39
FY 2012-13 and Q2, Q3feturn for the

Delhi
withmismatchfor suppliercreateAV DemandTliaonC bfiry:trgen

CommissionertionalAddiwithIS4. AThe20trY J pendingppeal

Amount in lakhs

38 A.

218.65

advances)

for (net ofnot providedcapital account and
Estimated amount of contracts remamlng to be executed on

NilNil
Other Commitments

Amount in lakhs
B and other commitment
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DLF Property Developers Limited
u70100HR2006PLC106417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tou'er, R Bloctq DLF City, Phase III, Gurugr arnr 122002.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3rMarch2Lzi

39 Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmenr Act, 2006 ((MSMED Act, 2006'r) is as under:

in lakhs

The above infrrrmation regarding Nlicro, Small and \ledium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have becn identificd on thc basis
of information available with the Companr'.'l'he same has been relied uprxr bv the auditors.

In respect of total outstandiflg dues of microeoterprises and small eflterprises beyond the period of45 dars from the due date and also as mentioned in
the form IUSIIE 1 filed bv the C<lmpanr with Registmr of Companies, there has been delav in palment to these NISIUE vendors due to non-submission
of requisite drxuments br the respective vendors, which has been ackoowledged bv the vendors. Hmce, the Companv has been unable to process their
pavments and the delav is oot attributable to the Compaov.

40 Io the opinioo of the iuaoagement there is no reductiofl ifl the value of aov assets, heoce no ptovision is required in terms of IND .\5-36 ,'lmpaimeot

41 'Ihe Companv has used a third parn opemted accounting software for maintaining is books of account and that the audit trail feature of rhc said
software was enabled and operated throughout the vear for all televant tmnsactions recorded in the software and the compan! perserved the audit trail
in frrll comptiance with the requiremeots of section 128(5) of the Compaflies -\cr, 2013, in respect of the financial r.ear endcd March 3l, 2025. Ll{)wever
in resPect ofthe fiflancia.l vears ended trIarch 31, 2024, \laflagemenr is not in possessid of Service ()rguisation Contols reporr (SoCl I'rpc 2 repon)
to determine whether the requiremmts of abovc Rule has been met.

i) the principal am()unr and the interest dtrc th ereon remairing unpaid to anY supplier as at the end of each
acc()urltltlll !ear;

52.73 350.61

ii) the amount nf interest paid bv the buver
made to the supplier bevond the appninted

section 16, along with the am()uflts of the payment
eac[] accouflting vear;

in terms of
dav during

Nil Nil

paid but bel'ond the appointed dav during the vear) but without adding the inreresr specified under this .\ct;

iii) the amount of interesr due and palable frrr the pcriod of delav in making pavmenr (which have been \il \il

interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the errd of each accounting vear; andiv) thc amount ()f Nil \il

interest remainhg due and payable even in the succeeding vears, until such clate
when the interest dues as above are actuallr, paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as
a deductible expenditure under section 23.

v) the amount of further \il \il
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DLF Property Developers Limited
u70100HR2006PLC106417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Bloclq DLF City, Phase III, Gurugrarnr 122002.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3lMarch 2025

(Amount in lakhs)
42 Ratio

(a) (-trrrcrrt ratio \,\ 1,.12 1.02 0. l0

(b) I )cbt-cquin' ratio [)ue to Increase in
Borrowings during the Year

2.33 1.91 0.18

(.) [)ebt sen icc c()veragc ratio [)ue t<'r EBI'f increase from
previ<lus vear

4.81 0.01 849.67

(d) Itcturn on et1uift raticl
Due to profit incurred during

the vear

0.82 (0.03) 29.81

(.) Inr,enton' turnover ratio
I)ue t<l increasc in Cost of
goods sold dtrring the vear

and closing inventon'

0.86 0.26 2.32

(f) T'rade receivable turnover ratio
Due to Increase in'l'rade
Receivable from previous

vear

22.00 15-5. r 8 (0.86)

(g) 'l'rade pavable turnover rati<r
Duc to Increase in Trade

Pavable from previous vear

1.84 0.12 14.31

(h) Net capital turnover ratio Sales increased dururg the

vcar

5.18 1.1,7 (0.28)

(i) Net profit ratio
[)ue to Profit incurred during

the lear
0.22 (0.01) (23.22)

(i) Rerurn on capital emploved
Due to Profit incurred during

the vear

0.72 0.22 2.29

(k) Return <ln furvestment \.\ \.\ \.\ \,\

(.) ( -urrcnt ratio Current -\ssets + Current Liabilin'
(b) l)ebt-equin rati<r -I'otal Debt + Total Eqr.ritl'

(c) [)ebt sen,ice c()\'erage ratio
Eamings befrrre exceptional items, lnterest and Tax + [Finance Cost * Principal

Repavments made during the pericld for non-current borrowings (including
current \laturitics)l

(d) Return on equin'ratio Net L'.arnings + Shareholders' Equin
(") Inventon' ttrrn<lr.cr rati<r T'urnover + Average Inventories
(0 'Irade receivable turnover rati<r Net (-redrt Sales + .\r'erage T'rade Receir.ables
(e) Trade pavable turnover rati<r \et (,redit Purchases - .\r,crage accounts pavable
(h) Net capital rurnover rati<r 'l'otal Sales - \\'orking (.apital

(i) Njet profit rati<r Net Profit after I'ax + Revenue from operations

(i) Return on capital emplol'ed
I:Ul'l' - (.apitd crnpkrvcd i.c. Shareh<>ldcrs equin' plus non current liabilities

(k) Retum on investment Net returrr on Investment + Cost of Investment

N

CHAiiTTRID
ACCOUIITANIS* *
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tharn25Vo

As at
3l March 2025

As at
3lMarch2A24

Variation more
thart25oh
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DLF Property Developers Limited
u70 100H R2006 PLC106417

Mezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Bloclq DLF City, Phase III, GurugrarnrlZ2002.
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3lMarchzl?,s

43 Other statutory information for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 3lMarchZ0Z4.

The Companv does oot hale anl benami pnrpem', where anv proceeding has been initiated or pending against the (irmpanl for holding anv benami
propert uoder the Benami I ransactions 0)rohibition) Acq 1988 (.15 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(')

(ii)

(*)

(i")

(")

The Company do not have any transactions with cornpanies struck offunder Secti.m 248 ofthe Companies -\ct, 2013.

'Ihe ComPanv do oot have anr charfps or satisfaction which is vet ro be registered with Registrar ofCompanies beyond the statutotv period.

The Companv have not traded or iflvested ir Cn?to Currmcv or \:irtual Currenq duting the financial year.

The ComPany has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entitv(es), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
uflde.standing that the lntermediary shall:

("ii)

("iii)

(i*)

44

(a) direcdv or indirecdr lend or iovest in other petsons or ertities identited in anv manner whatsoever bv or on behalf of the Company (Jltimate
Bene6ciaries); or

(b) provide anl guarantee, securiry or the like m or on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

,- The Compeny hes not received anr fund ftom anv person(s) or entitv(ier, including foreign entities (Fuoding Perty) with the uadersrending (whethet
' ' recorded in writhg or orherwise) that the Companv shall:

(a) direcdy or iodirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities idmtited in any maaner whetsoever bv or on behalf of rhe Fundiog party (t ltimate
Beoe&ciaries); or

@) provide any gurantee, securiry or the like oo behatf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Compen\' does n()t have any such tmnsaction which is not recordcd in the books ofaccount that has been surrendered ot disclosed as income in
the tax assessmmts under the lflcome tax .\ct, 1 961 (such as, search or sun er or anv other) relevant provisions of the Income-rax lct, I 961 .

The Companv has not been declarcd wilful defaulter bv anr bank or firanciel institution ot Govemmmt or an! (;o\,.emmmt authoritv or other lender,
in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued b_v the Rcserve Bank of lndia.

The Companv has complied with the number of lal'ers prcsctibed under Clause (87) ofsection 2 ofthe Companies .lct, 2013 read with the Companies
(Restrictitm on oumbet of Iavers) Rules, 2017 ft<>m the date of their implemcntation.

Segme Reportiog

Basis the rcview of operations being done bl the board afld the management, information requted to be disckrsed under notified Indian Accounting
Stendard-1o8 on ()perating Segmetts' as specificd under Section 133 of the Companies -\ct, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies(;\ccounts) Rulei
2014 as amended. 'lhc following business segmenr has been idefltified as Priman Rcporrable Segment:

Identification of Segments:
Business segments
The business ()f c()mparl\'c(xnpriscs ()f h()spitalin'serviccs of sale of frxrd and beverages and sale of land. plots. (.onstructcd Properties
Geographical segments
'['he (,ompanv is ()perating in India r,''hich is considercd as single ge(Xiraphical scgirncnr.
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DLF Property Developers Limited
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Idezzanine Floor, DLF Gateway Tou,er, R Broclq DLF city, phase III, Gurugr amr 122002.
Notes to the financial sratements for the year ended sr March z0z|

45 In the opinim of the Board of Ditectors current assets' kxos and adr,ances have a value .o realization in rhe ordiflary course of busiriess at leasr equal
to the amount at which thet'are stated in the Balance Sheet and provisions for all known liabilities ha'e been made.

Previous vear figures have been regrouped/ reclassified to c()rrespond to current vear classification.

lior and on bchalIof thc Board o[ l)irectors
DLF Property Developers Limited
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Viclcy Arora
Director
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